A copy of this Prospectus, having attached thereto the documents specified in Section 18 entitled “Documents Available for Inspection”
was delivered to the Registrar of Companies pursuant to Section 40(2) of the Companies Act, 2004 and was registered by the Registrar of
Companies on March 07, 2018 2018. The Registrar of Companies accepts no responsibility whatsoever for the contents of this Prospectus.

The Financial Services Commission registered this Prospectus on the March 08 2018 pursuant to Section 26 of the Securities Act. The
Financial Services Commission has neither approved the offered securities nor has the Commission passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of
this Prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence.
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This Prospectus (herein called “Prospectus™) s intended for use in Jamaica onlv and is not to be
construed as an offer of any of the Preference Shares outside Jamaica.

The Directors of CAC 2000 Ltd. ("CAC”) whose names appear in Section 6 of this Prospectus,
are the persons responsible for the information contained herein. To the best of the knowledge
and belief of the Directors, who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such 15 the case,
the information contained in this Prospectus 1s in accordance with the facts and no information
has been omitted likely to affect the import of information contained herein.

No person 1s authorised to provide information or to make any representation whatsoever in
connection with this Prospectus, which is not contained in this Prospectus.

PROSPECTUS
BY

CAC 2000 LTD
ON ITS OWN BEHALF

FOR FIXED AND VARIABLE RATE CUMULATIVE REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE
SHARES
AT A FIXED PRICE OF J$1.00 PER PREFERENCE SHARE
payable in full on application

The Application List will open at 9:00 am on March 16, 2018 and will close at 4.30pm pm on
March 23, 2018, subject to the Company’s right to close the Application List at any time
without notice if applications have been received for the full amount of the Preference Shares
offered and to the right to extend such closing beyond that date. Applications for Preference
Shares should be made on the original Application Form provided at the end of this Prospectus
or on the Application Forms otherwise published/made available by CAC. Each Application
must be for multiples of 10,000 Preference Shares subject to a minimum of 50,000 Preference
Shares. The procedure for completing the Application Form and the terms and conditions of
this Prospectus are set out in Section 18 of this Prospectus and on the reverse side of the
Application Form.

It is the intention of the Company to apply to the Board of The Jamaica Stock Exchange
Limited for all of the issued Preference Stock Units (following conversion, on issue of the
Preference Shares) to be listed on the JSE. The application will be made as soon as
conveniently possible following the closing of the Offer and the allocation of Preference
Shares. However, this statement is not to be construed as a guarantee that the Preference Stock
Units will in fact be listed on the JSE.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHATRMAN

Januarv 8, 2018

Dear Prospective Investors,

Just over three vears ago CAC, aided by Victoria Mutual Wealth Management Limited took the first
step towards obtaining working capital financing and issued Preference Shares by way of an Exempt
Distribution. This was followed by our successful listing of ordinary shares on the Junior Market of the
JSE on Jan 7, 2016.

The results have exceeded our expectations as our profits have continued to increase while financial
risks have been reduced and company value has grown from a Market value of $630.97M upon listing
on January 7, 2016 to a market value of $838.71M as at December 31, 2017.

In 2017, revenues increased by 19% over 2016 and net profit after taxation increased from $10.47M in
2016 to $100.74M in 2017, The company’s eamings per sharing improved to $0.78 in 2017 from $0.08
in 2016. Our growth however is constrained by the availability of working capital to support this
growth.

At this time. we have a healthy open job portfolio. We are also pleased to announce that we have worked
with another listed company to provide a commercial rental deal for a large BPO operation - the first
of this tvpe of deal in Jamaica where we will not only rent the ultra-high efficieney svstem(s) for 10
vears but will also monitor and maintain for the client. This idea i1s being pitched to other customers as
it reduces their upfront CAPEX expenditure and, in most instances, the operational savings realized by
the customer pays for the equipment rental.

As we begin the 2017/18 financial vear, Not only are we expecting further organic growth but we arc
also optimistic that we will be awarded a large hotel contract. We are also working on developing
regional sales and a new business venture in providing clectrical micro-grids (along with water supply
and trcatment options) — more to come in the next 3-6 months!

About the Invitation

This offering of the Preference Sharcs (the subject of the Offer) to the public will allow CAC to
strengthen its capital basc and give members of the public an opportunity to participate in the success
of CAC., Further, by listing the Preference Stock Units on the JSE, CAC will give investors the
opportunity to invest in a security that is liguid and freely tradable. Those investors will reccive
dividends that are cumulative and attract a reduced withholding tax of 15%.
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How to Subscribe for Shares

Those investors who are interested in subscribing for Shares should read the Prospectus in its entirety
and the terms and conditions of the Invitation set out in Section 18, and then complete the Application
Form sct out in Appendix 4 hercof.

The Directors hope that prospective investors will join the Company in this exeiting new phase of its
development.

Yours sincerely
CAC 2000 T.td

a—
-~ S

Steven Marston C.Eng, P.E.
Chairman and CEO

[
[DMCATIOM NG
LERERGY
HLETUH
EXPERTS

S——
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DEFINITIONS

I this Prospectus, the following words and phrases shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be read
and construed as having the tollowing meanings ascribed thereto:

“Allotment™
“Applicant”

“Application™

“Arranger”

“Closing Date™

“CAC"” or *“Company”
“Directors"

GI.FSC'!'!

“GOJ”
u‘lsﬂ
JS E”

“OfMer™

“Offer Price'

“Opening Date"

“Preference Shares

“Preference Stock Units™
*Registrar of Companies™

PROSPECTUS | Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

the allocation and issuance of Preference Shares to Applicants
the person or organization by whom an Application is madc

the application on the prescribed form set forth in Appendix 4 to
this Prospectus for the subscription of Preference Shares
comprised in the Olfer, duly completed and delivered to the
Arranger or a Broker to the Offer, together with payment in [ull
ol the subscription price for the amount subscribed

Victoria Mutual Wealth Management Limited a company duly
incorporated under the laws of Jamaica with registered olTices al
53 Knutslord Boulevard, Kingston 5

the time of closing of the Offer, as set forth in Section 3 of this
Prospectus (subject to such exiension(s) as the Directors may
determine)

CAC 2000 Lid of 31 Marcus Garvey Dirive, Kingston 11

the Directors of the Company

the Financial Services Commission of Jamaica, duly existing
under the Financial Services Commission Act

Ciovernment of Jamaica
the lawful currency of Jamaica
Jamaica Stock Exchange

the offer of the Preference Shares for subscription under this
Prospectus

J% 1.00 per Preference Share

the time of opening of the Offer, as sct forth in Scction 3 of this
Prospectus

means Lthe Fixed Rate and Varable Rate Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of CAC, the subject of the Offer

all or any of the Preference Shares converted to Preference Stock
Units on issue,

the Registrar of Companies of Jamaica




“Registrar” the Registrar whose name 15 set out in Scction 5 or such other
persons as may be appointed by CAC from time to time 1o provide
the services of registrar to CAC

“Terms of Issue of the the terms of issue of the Preference Shares set forth in Appendix
Preference Shares" 3 1o this Prospecius

DISCLAIMER AND FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus has been reviewed and approved by the Directors of CAC and they collectively and
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given herein and confirm that,
after having made all reasonable enquines, and to the best of their knowledge, information and belicf,
(i) the information is trug and accurate in all material respects and is not misleading in any material
respect, (11) any opinions, predictions or intentions expressed herein on the part of CAC are honestly
held or made and are not deliberately misleading in any material respect, (iii) that insofar as reasonably
possible, all proper inguirics have been made to ascertain and to venfy the foregoing, and (iv) this
Prospectus does not contain any untrue statement of a matenal fact or fail to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements herein, in the light of the circumstances under which they are
made, not misleading,.

Each Applicant submitting an application for Preference Shares acknowledges and agrees that (i) such
Applicant has been afforded a meaningful opportunity to review and has reccived. all additional
information considered by such Applicant to be necessary to venfy the accuracy of the information
contained in this Prospectus. (ii) such Applicant has not relied on CAC or any persons affiliated with
CAC or any sclling agent appointed by CAC, in connection with its investigation of the accuracy of
such information or its investment decision, and (ii1) no person has been authorised to give information
or to make anv representation concerning CAC or this Prospectus or the Preference Shares issued
pursuant thereto or to provide information or to make any representation whatsoever in connection with
this Prospectus other than as contained in this Prospectus and information given by duly authonsed
officers and emplovees of CAC in connection with the investors™ venfication of the information
contained in this Prospectus and that, if given or made. such other information or representation should
not be relied upon as having been authonsed by CAC or any affiliate.

Meither the publication of this Prospectus nor the offering, sale or allotment of any Preference Shares
hercunder shall under any circumstances imply that there has been no change in the business, results of
operations, financial condition or prospects of CAC since the date of this Prospectus.

In making an investment decision, investors are expected to make their own assessment of CAC and
the terms of the offer for subscription herein, including the ments and nisks involved.

Neither the FSC nor any Governmental agency or regulatory authority in Jamaica has
made any determination on the accuracy or adequacy of the matters contained in this
Prospectus.

This Prospectus contains summaries believed to be accurate with respect to certain terms of certain
documents, but reference should be made to the actual documents (copies of which will be available to
prospective investors upon request made to CAC) for complete information with respeet thereto. and
all such summaries are qualified in their entirety by such complete information.

Each invitee should consult with its own advisors as to the legal, tax, business, financial and

related aspects of subscribing for Preference Shares in CAC in this Offer, Neither CAC nor any
of its respective representatives is making any representation to any invitee or investor regarding the

it
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legal, tax, business, financial and related aspects of any invitee subscribing for Preference Shares in
CAC in this Prospectus. and invitees should not consider this Prospectus as a recommendation by CAC
that you should subscribe for or purchase any Preference Shares. Each invitee must make its own
investigation and evaluation of CAC and this Prospectus.

The distribution or publication of this Prospectus and the offering of the Preference Shares in certain
junsdictions 1s restricted by law. THIS OFFER IS THEREFORE MADE ONLY TO RESIDENTS OF
JAMAICA, IN JAMAICA. CAC requires that each Applicant informs himself about and observe such
restrictions.  This Prospectus docs not constitute. and may not be used for or in connection with. any
offer to, or solicitation by, anvone in any jurisdiction in which, or to or by any person whom, such offer
or solicitation would be unlawful.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Except for the historical information conceming CAC contained in this Prospectus, certain matters
discusscd in this Prospectus, including without limitation the discussions of future plans and financial
projections, contain forward-looking statements, Forward-looking statements arc statements that arc
not about historical facts and speak onlv as of the date thev are made. Although CAC believes that in
making any such statements its expectations are based on reasonable assumptions. such statements may
be influenced by factors that could cause actual outcomes and results to be materially different from
those projected. Invitees are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the dates on which they have been made. Future events or eircumstances could
cause actual results to differ matenally from histonical or anticipated results,

When used in this Prospectus, the words “anticipates™, “believes”, “expects”, “intends™ and similar
expressions, as they relate to CAC, are intended to identifv those forward-looking statements. These
forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties. Once this Prospectus has
been signed by or on behalf of CAC, CAC undertakes no obligation to update publicly or revise any of
the forward-looking statements in light of new information or future events. including changes in
CACs financial or regulatory position, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. There are
important factors that could cause actual results to differ matenally from those in forward-looking
statements, certain of which are bevond CAC’s control. These factors include, without limitation, the
following:

o economic, social and other conditions prevailing within Jamaica. including actual rates of growth
of the Jamaican cconomy, instability, high domestic interest rates or exchange rate volatility;

o adverse climatic events and natural disasters;

+ unavailability of regulatory approval to launch new financial products, or unfavourable market
receptiveness to new products:

= changes in any legislation or regulatory policy adversely affecting the revenues or cxpenses of
CAC;

s any other factor negatively impacting on the realisation of the assumptions on which CAC's
financial projections are based: and

o other factors identified in this Prospectus
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OFFER SUMMARY

The following summary information is derived from and should be read in confunction with, and is
gualified in its entivety by, the il rext of this Prospectus.

Recipients are advised to read this entire Prospectus carefully before making an investment
decision about this transaction. Each recipient’s attention is specifically drawn to the Risk
Factors in Section 16 of this Prospectus.

If vou have any questions arising out of this document or if yvou require any explanations, you should
consult vour stockbroker, licensed investment advisor, attoreyv-at-law, accountant or other professional

advisor.

ISSUER: CAC

SECURITIES: 200,000,000 Preference Shares in the capital of CAC.
SIGNIFICANT

TERMS & CONDITIONS

OF PREFERENCE STOCK

UNITS: The Preference Stock Units will carry the right to a cumulative
preferential dividend pavable quarterly at the Agreed Rate (as
hercinafier defined) per annum on the capital for the tme being
paid up or credited as paid up on the Preference Stock Units and
on a winding up to repavment in prionity to the ordinary
sharcholders of CAC. They will not carry the right to vote save
in narrowly prescribed circumstances being: (a) dividend not
paid for more than 12 months: or (b) on a winding up. The
Preference Stock Units mayv be redeemed by CAC on any
dividend date after the expiration of two (2) vears following the
Closing Date. on the giving of ninety (90) days™ notice in writing.
CAC reserves the right to redeem the Preference Stock Units by
purchase over the JSE for the price of J$1.00 per Preference
Stock Unit.

CAC also reserves the nght to issue additional preference shares
in the capital of CAC, the same to be converted to preference
stock units ranking pari passe with then existing Preference
Stock Units or otherwise differing from such Preference Stock
Units,

Variation of the Terms of Issuc of the Preference Shares will
require the consent of % of the holders of Preference Stock Units
present and voting.

“Agreed Rate™ means 9.50% per annum for the hirst four
years and thereafter a variable rate of 3.0 percentage points
above the weighted average vield rate applicable to the six-
month Jamaica Treasury Bill Tender (WATBY), held
immediately prior to the commencement of each quarterly
interest period, until maturity in 2023,
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For the entire Terms of Issue of the Preference Shares, please
see Appendix 3 to this Prospectus

TENOR: 60 Months

OFFER PRICE: J$1.00 per Preference Share
HOW PAYABLE: In full on application

No. of OFFERED

PREFERENCE SHARES: 200,000,000

OFFER CAPITALISATION: J3 200.000,000.00

INTENTION TO LIST ON JSE: CAC intends, immediately following the closing of the Offer, to
make an application to list all of its issued Preference Stock Units
on the JSE to facilitate the trading of the Preference Stock Units
over the JSE. This statement is not to be construed as a
guarantee that the Preference Stock Units will be listed on
the JSE,

TIMETABLE: Publication of Prospectus:  March 09,2018
Subscription List opens: March 16, 2018
Application Forms to be
received by, 4 30 pm on March 23, 20138
Allocation announced byv:  March 28, 2018
Refund cheques sent by: April 04, 2018

4, PURPOSE OF THE OFFER

It 15 the Company’s intention to use the proceeds of this preference share i1ssue to refinance existing debt
and to provide additional working capital for the benefit of its operations allowing the Companw
to take advantage of new business opportunitics,

This offering of the Preference Shares (the subject of the Offer) to the public will allow CAC
strengthen its capital base and give members of the public an opportunity to participate in the success
of CAC. Further, by listing the Preference Stock Units on the JSE investors will receive dividends that
are cumulative and attract a reduced withholding tax of 15%.

The Company also intends to use a part of the proceeds of the fundraising to pay the expenses of the
Invitation which, the Company estimates will not exceed $9 million (inclusive of financial advisory fees,
brokcrage foes, legal foes, auditor's foes, statutory foes (including Registrar's fees) and initial listing foes),
exclusive of General Consumption Tax. broken down as follows:
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Item Cost (Excluding GCT)

Brokerage and Financial Advisory Fees 5 6,000,000.00
Legal fees s 750,000.00
Registrar's Fees 5 78,228.00
Initial Listing Fees s 149,848.00
Marketing Fees and Statutory Costs 5 240,000.00
Other Cost s 1,781,924.00

Total % 2,000,000.00

PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS TO THE OFFER

BROKERS, ARRANGER AND FINANCIAL ADVISOR
Victoria Mutual Wealth Management Limited

53 Knutsford Boulevard

Kingston 3

Jamaica

LEGAL ADVISORS TO THE
COMPANY

Patterson Mair Hamilton
Attomevs-at-Law

“Temple Court™

85 Hope Road

Kingston 6

REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENTS TO THE OFFER
Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited

40 Harbour Street

Kingston
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6. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Senior Managers of the Company are set out below.
The Directors™ residential addresses are set out in Section 14 hereto, and all of them may be contacted
for business purposes ¢fo the registered office of the Company, CAC 2000 LIMITED, 231 Marcus
Garvey Drive. Kingston 11, Jamaica Telephone: (876) 656-9200 ¢ Facsimile: (876) 923-1785
Website: www cac2000ltd. com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Steven Marston, B.Sc. (Environmental Engineering) & MSc. (Energy Management and
Policy) |appointed July 24™, 2000]
Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Marston started his carcer as an Alternative Encrgy Engineer at the Ministry of Mining and
Encrev, changed jobs to become a Lead Engincer at PCJ Engincering Limited in 1983 later
becoming the Managing Dircctor of Enertech Limited and Conditionedair & Associated
Contractors (then owned by the ICD Group) in 1990 and 1993, respectivelv. Pant of his emplovment
deal involved an option to purchase 49% of the company which was exercised a few vears later.

In 1996, Mr. Marston was appointed as Vice-President of the Development and Construction
Division of the Mechala Group (now the ICD Group). In 2000, Mr. Marston completed a
management buy-out of the remaining 519 of the shares of the company (renamed CAC 2000) and
became the Chairman, Chief Executive Otfficer and majonty beneficial owner. Since then he has
lead it steadfastly to become the successful and profitable company that it is today having navigated
the Company through manv large-scale projects that it has undertaken over that penod, many of
which were won by virtue of him leading the negotiations.

His project management skills were honed during his vears at PCJ Engineering where he took over
the Bemard Lodge factory and 1) moved 1t from the second lowest to the most efficient factory in
Jamaica 2) purchased and installed a hyvdrous alcohol fermentery and distillery 3) signed a contract
(later cancelled as a result of the after-effects of Hurnicane Gilbert) for a 79MW bagasse
cogeneration project to export ¢lectricity to the national gnd along with numerous other projects
such as bagassc baling, dunder treatment. sorghum growing and processing and new irrigation
system.

A highly qualified engincer and businessman. Mr. Marston boasts the following qualifications and
memberships:

BSc (17 class Hons) University of Strathclyvde, Scotland (British Council Scholarship)
MS University of Pennsylvania USA

Certificate Owner President Programme 38, Harvard Business School (HBS alumnus)
Various courses at HBS including Driving performance through Talent Management and
the Crossroads (2 vear) programme

Registered Professional Engineer, Jamaica (P.E.)

Chartered Engineer, UK. (C.Eng.)

o Member, Jamaica Institution of Engincers (MJ.LE.)
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« Fellow. Institution of Mech. Engineers, UK. (F.IMechE)
*  Member, Amernican Society for Heating Refrigeration and Air conditioning Engincers
(MASHRAE)

He is also a Director of Triple Crown Sports in Fort Collins, Colorado.

Mr. Colin Roberts, B.Sc. (Hons.) (Electrical and Computer Engineering), MBA [appointed
July 24", 2000]
Executive Director and Director — Sales and Engineering

Mr. Roberts carcer in engineering commenced in 1987 as Trainee and then District Engincer (Saint
Catherine) at The Jamaica Public Service Company Limited.

In 1991, Mr. Roberts joined the Seprod Group of Companies in the capacitv of Electrical
Maintenance Engineer and later became the Maintenance Manager and Maintenance Director at
LOJ Property Management Limited gaining substantial experience with design and maintenance of
air conditioning and related svstems in commercial buildings. In late 1993 Steven Marston invited
him to join Conditionedair & Associated Contractors (CAC) as a sharcholder and as its Technical
Managcr,

In 2000, Mr. Roberts joined the CEQ in purchasing the remaining interest CAC and formed the
Company acting as the Company’s Chief Technical Officer and has recently become the
Company’s Director — Sales and Engincenng.

Mr. Roberts manages the sales. estimations and execution of many of the Company’s projects. He
camed his BSc (Hons) at UWI (T&T) and his MBA from Nova University and has further honed
these skills through the Kev Exceutive Program at the Harvard Business School and Leadership
Development course at Kellogg,

Ms. Gia Abraham, BSc. (Biology)
Executive Director and Director — Admin and Operations |appointed June 28", 2003]

After working many vears in Canada in personal investment banking (after joining Roval Bank of
Canada wpon graduation from University) Ms, Abraham joined Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce (CIBC) in Jamaica working in investment and trading before joining CAC as an officer,
shareholder and Director (and Company Secretarv),

Ms. Abraham has been instrumental in driving software upgrades and improving svstems and
procedures of the company and plays a key role in managing some “back-office” processes of the
company while handhing treasury and foreign suppher pavments. She is also in charge of the
Service Dept. operations.

She eamed her BSc at the University of Toronto has also participated in numerous exccutive
development programmes at HBS including Key Executive, Leadership Development and Driving
Performance through Talent Management,

Ms. Abraham is the Company Secretary and a member of both the Company’s Audit
Committee and its Remuneration Committee.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Mr. Edward Alexander, B.Sc. and M.Sc. [appointed October 3", 2012]

Edward (Teddy) Alexander is the founder and Chief Executive Officer of tTech Limited (“tTech™).
Jamaica's first Managed IT Service Provider, and is a true visionary in the field of Information
Technology.

This profoundly capable IT specialist and business executive established tTech in 2006 after an
illustrions eighteen (18) wear carcer with GraceKennedy Limited, where he served as the
company’s Chief Information Officer. His distinguished career spans more than three (3) decades.
During the 1980°s he worked in the alternative energy field at the Ministry of Mining & Energv
and the Petroleum Corporation of Jamaica before switching to the information technology field
when he assumed the position of Management Consultant at KPMG Peat Marwick & Partners. In
1988 he joined Grace Unisys as an Account Manager and it was there his passion for IT blossomed.

By 1993 he was given responsibility for information technology at Gracekennedy and ushered in
an era of innovation during his tenure until he left to form tTech in 2006,

His vision 1s to assist companies to improve the effectiveness of their investments in information
technology by mimimizing the cost of ownership of their infrastructure while maximizing the value
from their business applications, ultimately leading to systems which contribute to increased
competitiveness and profitability.

His many suceesses have been shaped in part by his experiences and too by his impressive
educational background. He holds a Masters of Science degree from the University of Pennsylvama
and Bachelor of Science degree from the Umiversity of Windsor. In addition he has completed
professional courses at the Harvard Business School and the University of Flonda and is also a
former President of the Jamaica Computer Society.

Mr. Patrick A. H Smith, B.Sc. and M.B.A. [appointed May 30™, 2017)

Patrick A. H Smith has had broad general management experience having worked for more than
30 years within the Canbbean and European industries. Mr. Smith began his career at the Kingston
Export Free Zone as an Investment Promotion Manager in 1981, Over the next few decades he
would fulfil several positions at vanous local and intermational business entities including:
Marketing Manager at T Geddes Grant Group Jamaica Limited. General Manager at Jamaica
Biscuit Company Limited. Busingss Unit Director |Caribbean] at British American Tobacco
Canbbean and Central Amenca. Most recently he held the role of Global Account Manager at
Dunhill Cigars, British Amcrican Tobacco International in Switzerland, He has also scrved as the
Chairman of Things Jamaican Limited and of Demerara Tobacco Company Limited in Guvana. He
has previously served as a Director at the Export Import Bank of Jamaica, Carreras Limited, West
Indian Tobacco Companv Limited in Trinidad and Tobago, JAMPRO, and has been a Viece
President of the Jamaica Exporters Association in the 1990°s,

Mr Smith 15 now retired,

He holds a BSc. in Public Administration from the University of the West Indics Mona and an
M.B.A from MNova South Eastern University, Florida.
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Matthew A. Hogarth, LL.B [appointed May 30", 2017]

Matthew A. Hogarth is a Legal Practitioner who specializes in the areas of banking, finance,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate structuring and govemance, taxation, trusts, real estate and
business advisory. Mr. Hogarth has spent much of his carcer applving his expertise to high value
private cquity and debt transactions. comporate bank loan transactions. Initial Public Offenings
(IPOs), privatce business and legal audits, the management and strategy of insolvency, receivership
assignments and residential and commercial real cstate transactions. He is a member of the Mew
York Bar Association, the American Bar Association, the Jamaican Bar Association and the British
Virgin Islands Bar Association. He is also a member of both the Audit and Nomination Committees
at Carreras Limited (British Amencan Tobacco) and a member of both the Audit and Compensation
Commuittees at lronRock Insurance Company Limited.

Mr. Hogarth is currently a Partner at the law firm MH&CO.

He holds an LL.B Law (with honours) from the University of Liverpool and a Certificate of Legal
Education from the Norman Manlev Law School.

Richard Kevin Powell BSc. MSc. M.B.A |appointed May 30", 2017]

Mr. Richard Powell, a recently retired President and Chief Executive Officer of The Victoria
Mutual Building Society Group (VM Group), has gamered vast professional expenence from many
appeintments including that of President and CEQO of Life of Jamaica Limited. Blue Cross of
Jamaica as well as an executive management position at the Lascelles DeMercado Group of
Companies. He has also served on the Boards of Life of Jamaica Limited. Lascelles DeMercado
& Company Limited, Island Life Insurance Company Limited, among others. Prior to these
appointments, Mr. Powell had a successful engincering career in the public sector. In addition to
his service for the benefit of private sector corporations he has also been appointed to Boards of
many Non-Govermnmental Organizations and public sector Agencies, These include the PSOJ
Council, The Jamaica Stock Exchange E-Campus, the United Wav of Jamaica, The Environmental
Foundation of Jamaica (EFJ) as well as the National Works Agency Advisory Committee of which
he was Chairman.  Mr. Powell is currently Pro-Chancellor of the University of Technology in
Kingston, Jamaica.

He holds a BSc. (Hons.) in Civil Engineering from the University of the West Indies, St Augustine
Trimdad, a MSe. in Highway Engincenng from the University of Birmingham in England and a
M.B.A. (with Distinction) from York University in Canada.

Jennifer E McDonald BA, M.B.A [appointed May 30™, 2017]

Jennifer E McDonald is a Senior Level Executive and Transtormational Leader with more than 3
decades of experience working within the private and public sector. Ms. McDonald started her
carcer at the Ministryv of Labour as an Economist from 1983 — 1984, Soon after she became the
Senior Marketing Coordinator at 1CD Group, a position she would occupy until 1993 when she
became the Special Assistant to the Prime Minister. Over the next twenty vears she would assume
key positions at governmental agencies including Assistant Manager at the Jamaica Conference
Center, General Manager at the Urban Maintenance Limited. Director of Corporate Services at the
Mational Land Agency and more recently Chief Executive Officer at the Passport Immigration and
Citizenship Agency. a position she occupied from 2007 - 2016,
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She 1s currently a Part Time Leeturer at the University of the West Indies. University of Technology
and Insurance College of Jamaica and is also a member of the Euralvsum Ltd Board.

She holds a Bachelor of Arts (Hons), in Geography and Economics, Diploma in Management
Studies and a Marketing M.B_A from the University of the West Indies, Mona.

PROFILES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

SENIOR MANAGERS

Mrs. Colleen Ellison-Hall FCCA
Financial Controller (appointed February 2015)

Colleen started her carcer at National Commercial Bank Jamaica Lid. (in centralized FX Dept)
then moved to J. Wray and Nephew Lid spending 13 vears in various roles in the then Audit and
Accounts Department eventually becoming their Chief Accountant.  She then jomed Stocks and
Securities Limited as their Audit and Compliance Manager and. after leaving. branched out on her
own business venture while doing audit work on a contractual basis for Mavo Holdings Ltd.

At CAC she 1s in charge of the financial and accounting operations of the company including
purchasing and inventory management.

Mrs. Ellison-Hall graduated from CAST also has completed a postgraduate diploma in Financial
Services Management from JSE e-campus and 1s a Fellow of the Association of Certified Charntered
Accountants

Mr. Glaister Cunningham.
Project Implementation Manager (appointed September 1%, 2017)

A recent addition to the CAC team., Glaister has worked in the ficlds of engincering and project
management for over 18 vears. His training includes a B.Se. in Civil Engincering, MSec. in
Structural Engincering and an Exccutive MBA as well as participation in scveral certification and
cxccutive courses in Project Management, Negotiation and Leadership. Just prior to joining CAC
he worked for nine vears at the Inter-American Development Bank as an Operations Specialist
focusing on the implementation of projects in the arcas of Water and Sanitation, Transportation and
Energyv. Glaister now manages the Project Implementation Division and supports the executive
tecam in its efforts to constantly mnovate and improve its service to both external and internal
clients.

Mr. Richard Stephenson, B.Sc.
Sales Manager (appointed January 26", 2017)

Richard has over 25 years’ experience in Marketing, Sales and General Management. He
is a graduate of West Virginia Wesleyan College with a major in Marketing and a minor
in Economics and has participated in several marketing, sales, leadership and coaching
development programmes. Most of Richard’'s experience has been in FMCG, distribution
and retail both locally and regionally. He has also led on several consolidations and the
start-up of companies and operations. Richard is excited about his responsibility as part of
the CAC leadership team and will play an integral role in the roll out of the new Customer
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Relationship Management (CRM) system as well as enhancing sales operations and
customer experience.

7. INFORMATION ABOUT CAC
BRIEF HISTORY
The Company and its History

The Company is a succession of a number of businesses starting with Webster's Engincering in the
late 1920°s.  In the mid-1960s, the ICD Group (formerly the Mechala Group) bought
Conditionedair Comporation and merged it with another company to form Conditionedair and
Associated Contractors, or “CAC™ for short. CAC was later merged into the iconic “Homelectrix™,
which was a household brand in Jamaica for many vears. When Homelectrix was sold in the early
19905, the management team purchased 49% of the newly formed Conditionedair and Associated
Contractors (CAC). On July 24%, 2000 the Company was incorporated. and the remaining 51%
was purchased on August 18", 2000, and that is the Genesis of the Company s name: “CAC 2000
Limited™.

By virtue of the various iterations of the business, the Company has been the sole appointed
representative for Carrier®, world leaders in air conditioning technology, in Jamaica for over
cighty-four (84) vears. Although the Company is predominantly a Carmer® dealer, it also offers
other premium equipment brands such as Mitsubishi Electne®, LG R, Fujitsu'® and CIACE® as well
as both factory and generic parts.

The Company is proud to be the only Carnier® Certified Service Provider in Jamaica, and we are
qualified to work on the most sophisticated Carrier® products in the Caribbean. We are also the
sole Carmier® dealer in Jamaica and arc authorized to design. install, service and offer factory
warrantics on the entire range of Carmier® equipment. The Company is also the oldest surviving
Carrierk air conditioning dealer outside of the United States.  This is significant to note especially
in light of the fact that Carrier® installed the very first commercial air-conditioning machine in
1926, and our predecessor company was appointed a Carrier® dealer in 1929,

In recent vears the Company has expanded to offer other top brands and in particular LGR._ and
Mitsubishi Electric® and. by being able to offer our customers new brands and system solutions
(particularly two world leading VRF and multi-split svstems) CAC has managed to grow the
installation and service business while investing further in technical development of its engincering
and technical resources.

By virtue of the qualifications and ¢xperience of its management team, the Company 1s first and
foremost an engincering company that specializes in applied air conditioning svstems (chillers.
cooling towers, pumps, air handling units and state of the art variable refrigeration flow (VRF)
systems, to name a few) and prides itself on offering technical solutions and multiple options for
clicnts, with a level of expertise and expericnce unmatched by any other company in Jamaica. The
Company is also one of the leading providers of commercial Air Conditioning (HVAC) svstems
and refrigeration and energy solutions in Jamaica, whilst maintaining a respectable share of the
residential market. It 1s also one of the few Grade 1 contractors (HVAC) in Jamaica {(and also a
Grade 1 Mechanical Works and Grade 3 Electrical Works).
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The Company sells, services and supports some of the most sophisticated air conditioning systems
ever designed and completed in Jamaica. CAC's technical and engincering expertise and
experience sets it apart from the competition. The Company’s engineering and technical services
in the air conditioning industry is based on the expertise and expenence of in-house engineers and
Carricr® certified technicians, backed by the technical support staff and expertise of Camerk.,
Mitsubishi Elcetric. LGR and Fujitsu &,

The Company is committed to delivering comprehensive and innovative air-conditioning and
energy saving solutions and serviees to the Jamaican market and the wider Caribbean region.

Summary of Products and Services
PRODUCTS

The Company offers some of the largest and most technologically advanced range of air-
conditioning systems in Jamaica. Its products come with a best value guarantee, backed with
factory warranties. CAC are long-time partners of Camerk, LG, Mitsubishi Electric and Fujitsu®
air-conditioning svstems while also offering associated equipment from manv other suppliers.

The Company prides itself on offering expert solutions to help our chients meet their air-
conditioning and energy saving requirements. The Company sells a wide range of world-class air
conditioning brands of equipment and parts including Carrier®, LGE, Mitsubishi Electric,
Fujitsu®, Carlvle®, Honevwell®, Sanvo®, Emerson®, Mitsubishi Electric®, TopTech® and
Fasson® among others.

OUR SERVICES

The Company’s highly trained technical and support team have a positive attitude and weleome
every opportunity to better serve clients. The team aims to deliver the highest level of service,
firmly positioning the Company as the industry leader in air-conditioning and energy efficiency
service.

CAC strives to remain the serviee industry leader in Jamaica by fostering a team of emplovees and
contractors who offier a world-class standard of technical services and expertisc.

The Company’s Carricr® certified Technical team is ready and available to provide a wide range
of Services such as:

- Installation of units

- Servicing of units

- Electrical installations and repairs

- Duct design, fabrication and installation

- Energy saving projects

- Building load analvsis and Encrgy usage simulation

- Economic comparisons of HVAC options

- Testing, adjusting and balancing

= Design assistance to consulting engineers, architects or customers
- Project Engincering and Design assistance

- Factory support

- Engincering, procurement and construction {design-build)
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CUSTOMERS

The Company has a vast list of customers for whom it has handled projects by providing products.
engineering solutions and service for at various levels. Some of our top customers include:

Mational Insurance Fund Xerox

University of the West Indies (vanous departments) | Bank of Nova Scotia
Gracekennedv Limited Victoria Mutual Building Societv
Jamaica National Group Kier Construction

First Caribbean Interational Bank Megamart

Pricesmart Jamaica Palace Amusement Cinemas
Government of Jamaica (manv Ministries and Executive Agencies)

Some of CAC’s recent or most notable projects include:

The UWI Basic Medical Services | Moon Palace Hotel (formerly The Jamaica Grande
Complex Hotel)

The Jamaica Pegasus Hotel The Petroleum Corporation of Jamaica

The Jamaica Gleaner Company J. Wrav & Nephew

Pricemart Jamaica Megamart (Waterloo Road)

Guardian Lifc Palace Amuscment Cinemas

The Bank of Nova Scotia (various | First Caribbcan International Bank (various
branches) branches),

National Commercial Bank (various | Red Stripe

branches)

Jamaica Flour Mills PricewaterhouseCoopers

KPMG First Global Bank

Creative Building Finishes Braco Hotel

Iberostar Hotel (phase 1) U'WI Law School

Xerox Call Centres (various locations) Norman Manlev International Airport

8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION,
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS & FUTURE PROSPECTS

I. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

CAC is a provider of commercial Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems and refrigeration and energy
solutions in Jamaica. whilst maintaining a respectable share of the residential market. The Company
sells. services and supports the most sophisticated air conditioning svstems ever designed and
completed in Jamaica. The Carrier representation has been held by CAC (by various names and
ownership structures) since 1929 making the Company one of the oldest Carner dealers in the
world (recognizing that the first air conditioning systems were only developed by Dr. Willis Carrier
in 1902).

Financial Performance

Review of Financial Performance for the year ending October 31, 2017

i
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Revenue and Profits - Versus Prior Year

The Company experienced a 19% growth in revenue from $1.017B to $1.21B in 2017 relative to
2016, Gross profits increased by 3.3% from $410M to $424.4M. This resulted from improved
margins derived from better cost controls on projects and stronger supplicr support. Profit before
tax for the 2017 reporting period was $100.5M relative to 511.3M in 2016, A full provision of
$104.2M for the judgement of a court case was made in 2016 that resulted in the lower profit before
tax for that vear. Admimstrative expenses in 2017 experienced an inerease of 6.25% over 2016 as
resources increased to support the increased work load. Profit after tax for the 2017 financial vear
was $100,736,163 or $0.78 per stock unit in companson to $10.469.979 and $ 008 per stock unit
for the 2016 review penod.

Cash flow

The company cash position improved during the 2017 financial yvear increasing by $33.83M or
21.4% to $191.7M. Tlus was mainly attributed to cash from financing activates increasing by
$30.78M to $96,48M during 2017, This increase was as a result of loan facility obtained to fund
working capital activitics.

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

This scction provides an analysis of the Company’s financial performance over the perniod
represented by the Historical Financial Information.
Past Five (5) Financial Years Ratio Analysis

31-Jul-13 31-Jul-14 31-Oct-15 31-Oct-16 31-Oct-17

Current Ratio: _Cumrent Assets
Current Liabilities 1.57 <08 &30 .17 1.70
Profitabiity
Return on Assets: Met Profit
Total Aszate 12.03% 7.60% 10.58% 1.23% 10.22%
Return on Equity: NelProfit 32.63%| 24.61%| 31.53%|  3.25%| 23.81%
Shareholders Equity
Gross Profit Margin:__Gross Profit
Turnover 31.38% 36.00% 33.20% 40.30% 35.05%
Met Profit Margin: HMet Profit
e ——— 6. 26% 5.41% 5.99% 1.03% 8.32%
Earnings per Share $ 933 | % JFEV| S 1294 | % 00B| % 0.78
- ANg
Asset Turnover: Sales
Total Assets 1.92 1.40 1.77 1.19 1.23
Administrative Expenses as a percentage of
=l 20.81%| 23.99%| 20.93%| 25.11%| 22.42%
Admin Expenses
Sales
Capital Structure
Debt to Equity: Total Debt 0.04 0.73 0.77 0.52 0.62
Tatal Equity
Interest Coverage 55.35 482 5.64 1.19 7.38
Debt to Total Assets  Total Debt
Total Assets 0.01 0.23 0.26 0.19 0.26
ME
COMDITIONG
LENERGY
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Revenue Growth Analysis

Revenue
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The Company’s revenue increased by approximately 62.56% over the period represented by the
Historical Financial Information (being the financial vears ending July 2013 up to and including
that ending October 20017). Sales moved from $744 93M in 2013 to $1.21B in 2017, indicating
increased sales and services to customers over the five (3) vear period.

Gross Profit

Gross Profit

450,000,000
400,000,000
350,000,000
300,000,000
250,000,000
200,000,000 -
150,000,000
100,000,000 -
50,000,000

0

SNN NN

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Gross profit experienced a cumulative growth of approximately 81.56% over the five year period
represented by the Historical Financial Information, moving from $233.77M as at financial vear

PROSPECTUS | Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 21




ending July 2013 to $424.44M as at financial vear ending October 2017. This equates to a dollar
movement of $190.67M. Over the five financial vears, gross profit margin averaged 35.2%.

Profit before Taxation

Profit Before Taxation
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The Company’s pre-tax profits averaged $62.3 IM over the review period, peaking at $100.51M in
2017, Over the five-vear period represented by the Historieal Financial Information pre-tax profits
moved from a low of $11.32M in 2016 to a high of $100.51M as at financial vear ending October
2017. The 2016 review period saw a decline in pre-tax profits due to an exceptional item relating
to the full provision of $104.2M for the judgement of a court case during that vear.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative Expenses
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The Company’s administrative expenses increased in line with the increased levels of business,
moving from $155.04M at the end of the 2013 financial vear to $271.48M for the period ending

22 PROSPECTUS | Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares



October 2017. The Company’s administrative expenses averaged 22.65% of sales over the period.
For the period ending October 2017 administrative expenses averaged 22.42% of sales which is
marginally below the five-year average.

Trade & Other Receivables

Trade & Other Receivables
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The Company’s trade & other receivables has increased in ling with the increased levels of
business, moving from $149.22M at the end of the 2013 financial vear to $536.33M for the perod
ending October 2017,

Trade & Other Payables

Trade & Other Payables
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For the financial vears 2013 - 2015 the company’s trade & other pavables averaged J$193.53M
peaking at JS215.70M in 2014, In 2016 the company’s trade & other pavables increased to

i
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J$359.77M mainly due to an accrual of J$124.18M representing court awarded damages and other
related costs. For the 2017 financial period trade pavables and other pavables stood at JS295 $0M.

Leverage Ratio Analysis

* Debt to Equity — For the 2012 financial vear the company s debt to equity stood at 0.04X.
As the company grew additional debt was utilized by the company to facilitate the growth
of the business. This has resulted in the ratio averaging 0.66X for the period 2014 to 2017
peaking at 0. 77X in at 2015,

s [Interest Coverage Ratio — As of the end of the 2017 financial vear CAC’s interest
coverage ratio stood at 7.38X and has averaged 4.76X for the four vear period from the
2014 to 2017, In 2016 the ratio fell to 1.19X as a result of a decline in pre-tax profits due
to an exceptional item relating to the full provision of $104.2M for the judgement of a court
case during that vear.

* Debt to Total Assets - For the 2013 financial vear the company’s debt to total asscts
stood at 001X, Growth facilitated by debt resulted in the ratio increasing to 0.23X in
2014 averaging 0.24X for the period 2014 to 2017.

Il, RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Audited Financial Statements and Summary of Five Year Audited Financial Information

(2013 - 2017)

The historical financial information is extracted from the audited financial statements of the
Company for the twelve-month reporting periods ended July 317 in the vears 2013 to 2014 the
fifteen-month comparative period July 31, 2014 to October 31, 2015 and the twelve- month
period ended October 31 in the vears of 2016 and 2017.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT Aundited Audited Audited Awndited Aud ited
FOR PERIOD ENDED - Jul13 I Jul-14 31-0ct-15 31.0ct-16 3.0t 17
INCOME

Reverme 744925072 708,333,759 1,079.233336 1017610973  1,210935,472
Cost of Sdes (511,155,500 (453.307,1400  (T20.971.689% (607527.493) (7T86,500,045)
Gross Profit 233,769,572 155026619 358281647  410,083.450 424435427
Distribution Costs (17,546842)  (G1,314,622)  (41,187,258) (31851,89§)  (37,421,374)
Administraive supenses (155,042.003) (169936004) (225808676 (25550293 (271478120)
Total Distribution & administrative expenses (172,588935) (201,250,626) (267,085,934) (287,354,830) (308,899,496)
Other Income : 1,454,500 13,925,137 160,411 2115,167
Cowt awarded damages, net - . 0 {104.181.618) -
Profit before finance cost and taxation 61,180,637 55,230,493 105,120,850 18,716,443 117,651,098
Other gains and losses 1,037,060 5,361,364  (3,183599)  6926,000 (2277,338)
Interest [ncome 2,306, 566 .2,].1'3,.'!'2'9 1,516,944 1,406 350 1,090,020
Finance Costs (1,105296) (11,451,637 (18652 570)  (15,733,068) {15949 599)
Net Fmance Costs 2,438,650 (3,926,534) (20,319,223) (7,400,718) (17,136,74T)
Profit Before Tax 63,619,267  SL303959  S4.80L625  113ISTIS 100,514,351
Tazation (16972 804y (12052 3500 (20,136 442} (B45.746) 221,812
Net Profit 46,646,463 38 351,600 64,675,183 10,469,979 100,736, 163
[BALANCE SHEET

Total Non Cusrent Assets 9,830,782 15,791,062 34516951 53276565 45778958
Totl Current Assests 377,963 602 438 650 403 576,882 953 T9E 433 603 039431 852
Total Assets AT 85 A51 557 611 05 851, 710,168 210,810
Share Capital 500,000 500,000 00,000  120,189.757 129,189,757
Remmed Eammngs 142 444 BRS 155, 348 778 204 632773 193 167 268 193903 431
Total Shareholders' Equity 142044885 155,848,778 205132773 322357025 423,093,188
Tetal Non-Curveat Liah Sities 4774491 113,884980 155651744 160,652,565 2,029,747
Total Current L iaklies 240,156,008 234 T17 799 250,613, 388 368 700 578 554027 875
Total Equity and Liabilities 187855384 504,451,557 611,399, 905 851, 710.168 985210,810
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Trade & Other R eceivahles 199,030574 187,198,851  I8L168.345  356,60685 536331072
Trade & Other Payables 188,605 864 215,697 943 182 297 353 350772 577 5903418
Total Debrt 5132487 114,331,108 157,324 836 166,060,182 260,635,515
Number of [sned Shares 3,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 129,032 258 129032258
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EPMG

Chartered Accountants
PO, Box 76

G Duks Street

Kingston

Jamaica, V.l

+1 (B76) 522 6840
firmmail@kpmg.com.jm

March 5, 2018

The Board of Directors
CALC 2000 Limited

231 Marcus Garvay Driva,
Kingston 11

Lagies and Gentlemen,
CAC 2000 Limited — Prospectus 2018 Preference Share Offer

With respect 1o the ofter made by CAC 2000 Limited lor the sale of preference
share units, wa hareby consent 10 the inglusion in the Prospectus of our report
dated December 22, 2017, the summary stietements of financial position as at July
31, 2013, July 31, 2014, October 37, 2018, Octaber 31, 2016 and Cctober 31,
2017 far CAC 2000 Limited and the summary income statements for each of the
frve periods then ended, and to the references to our name in the torm and
conaxt inwhich it is included in the Prospectus

Wie confinm that we have nat withdrawn such consent bafore dalivery of a copy of
the Prospectus to the Financal Services Commission for registration,

This letter should not be regarded as in any way updating the aforementioned
report of reprasanting thal we performed eny procaedures subsedquent to the date
af such reports.

Yours faithfulhy,

RT:JFrw
Rl Hinda
(e TN S, W G e e
Fapn Teran Ay B ok ey
EPRE] v ) w i b & I o0t T of T OF mebecr 3 e dee wemiom B MarrgnQ Asviond ‘Wit A Somsne
Wt e L] Ll A TG PRI L B S . e A o Fochels W Sepreren
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KPMG

Chartered Accountants
PO, Box 76

6 Duke Street

Kingston

Jamaica, Wl

+1 (B76] 922 6640
fimmail@&kpmg.com.jm

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Ta the Board of Directors
CAC 2000 LIMITED

Opimion

The summary financizl infarmation set autin Section 8 11, which comprise the
summary statements of financial position as at July 31, 2013, July 31, 2014,
Oetaber 31, 2015, October 31, 2016 and Octeber 31, 2017 and the summary
income statements for each of the five periods then ended, are derived fram the
audited financial statemants of CAC 2000 Limited as at and for the periods
ended Juhy 31, 2013, July 31, 2014, October 31, 2015, Cctcber 31, 2076 and
Qctrager 31, 2017,

In our opinion, the summary financial information is consistent, in all material
respects, wilh the audited inancial s1atements.

Surmmary Financia! Information

The surmmary financial information does not contain all the disclosures reguired
by International Finzncisl Reperting Standards applied in the preparation of the
audited financial staternents of CAC 2000 Lirmited. Reading the summary
financial infarmation and our reports thereon, therefore, is not a substitute for
reading the audited financial staterments and our reperts thereon, The summary
financial information and the audited financial staterents do not reflect the
eftects of events that cocurred subseguent to the date of our reports on the
audited financial staterments.

I L Harcie
Oyl Laaynon Dl . e sl
Poun biymaa A Iohwmon
EMNIE, et parrersitin oo reoribe e ol U IGPREG: vk o wgeniend e s Ferrran { Rniged b A Soaron
e v KT Bty ioral Dot |G e rtor s L i Bl s Mg AL Crprvibery Roschly W Erpharmen
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kPMG'

Fage 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION ([CONTINUED)

To tha Board of Directors
CAC 2000 LIMITED

The Audited Financial Statements and Cur Reports Thereon

Qur report dated May 14, 2014, on the 2013 financial statements was
gualified on the basis that we werg apponted auditors afoer Juby 31, 2013,
Conseqguently, wo were unable to obsarve the taking of the physica
inventories staled a1 $1B2,388,130, net as at July 31, 2013 and there were no
practical alternate acditing procedures that we could apply to verify the
exisience of quantities as at thal date.

W exprassad unmadified audit opinions in our reports dated June 10, 2015,
March 14, 2016, December 29, 2016 and December 22, 2017 on the fmancal
statamants lor the periods ended July 31, 2014, Ocrober 31, 2015, Octoer
31, 2018 and October 31, 2017, respadtivaly.

Management's Responsiality for the Summany Financial Information

Managarnant is responsiple for the preparation of the summary financial
information.

Auditors " Responsinity

Qur responsibdity is 10 expréss an opinicn an whether the summany financial
information is consistent, in all material respects, with the auditad financial
statements based on cur procedures, which were conducted in accordance with
Imernational Standard on Auditing [IS4] 810 {Revised). ~ Engagements to Rgport
an Summary Financial Statermnenis™.

/’Cﬂnﬁq
Charterad Accourtants
Kingeton, Jamaica

March &, 2018
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IV. FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company’s historical approach has been one focused on methodical growth with selected and
lower risk key customers, The goal has been to systematically improve the Company’s capabilitics
bv developing in-house managerial and professional skills.

The Company intends to add new personnel to staft in key arcas to support the expected growth for
2018 and bevond. With these additions, improvement i1s expected in the sales and estimation
accuracy, project planning process and execution.

CAC has identified three main arcas which are expected to produce growth in gross profit as

follows:

. Organic growth particularly in installation projects and service

. Projects

. Acquisitions of complementary businesses. such as alternative energy and lighting.
roani wih

One of CAC s differentiation strategies is that the Company has worked closely with engineers and
will continue to work closely to influence designs and tenders. This involves training, design
assistance, drawings preparation and bills of quantities. This approach has won many jobs for the
Company in past vears.

Another stratcgy 18 to create projects by initiating discussions with the client and structuring said
projects as an investment opportunity .c. bencfits pay for the capital investment rather than simply
as a capital expenditure. The Company intends to continue with this model while increasing the
percentage of these “CAC created”™ projects and increasing the value-added opportunities for the
client base.

In addition, the Company will continue its focus on key customers and in particular those that have
identified need for replacement of existing or new equipment.

Lastlv, the reorganization process and software improvements made over the past 2-3 vears
continue to vield improvements in gross profit realized on the total job portfolio.

Frojects

The Company aims to work with joint venture partners to compete for Jamaican projects and similar
projects regionally and internationally,

One of the most important changes expected is the diversification from being solely an air-
conditioning company to that of a Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing (MEP) contractor. Project
staffing will be a combination of in-house expertise. joint venture partners or outsourcing as
needed.

CAC’s key strategic partners include:
Carner InterAmerica Comp (Miami)

LG (Panama)
. Mitsubishi Electric
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- Kicr Construction
Inica Ingeniena de Instalaciones 5. AL,

Acquisitions

The Company will continue to work closely with solar energy and lighting companics and will
explore opportunities for buving into and managing these companics.

9, AUDITORS' REPORT and FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
See Appendix 1 to this Prospectus

10. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors and the Management team of the CAC are committed to following best
practices in corporate governance as a foundation for long-term suceess.

The names of the directors and senior management and their biographical information are set out
in Section 6 of this Prospectus.

The Management team is comprised of:

NAME POSITION QUALIFICATION
Steven Marston Chicf Excecutive Environmental Engineering
Officer (HVAC)HBSec), Encrov Management &
Policy (MS). Cent. OFM
Colin Roberts Director - Sales and | Electrical Engineer (BSc. MBA)
Engineering
Gia Abraham Director — Admin. Cormporate Banker (BSc)

And Operations
Colleen Ellison-Hall Financial Controller | Dipl. Bus Admin/Accounts (CAST)
Richard Stephenson Sales Manager Marketing and Sales (BSc¢)

Glaister Cunningham Civil Engineer/Project Manager (BSc
MSc. M.B.A.. PMI)
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Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors are as follows:

NAME QUALIFICATION

Richard Powell Civil Engineer BSc. (Hons. ), MSe.
In  Highway Engineering and
M.BA.

Edward Alexander | BSc, MSc.

Patrick Smith BSc. Public Administration,
MB.A.

Matthew Hogzarth Attorney-at-Law LL B
Jennifer McDonald | Transformational Leader BSc..
Diploma, M. B A

Board Committees:

CAC has cstablished Board Sub-Committecs charged with ensuring CACs corporate integrity and
adherence to applicable law. Their members are noted below.

Aupdit and Fimance Commttee:

NAME POSITION QUALIFICATION

Richard Powell Chairman Civil Engineer BSc. (Hons.), MSe.
In  Highway Engineering and
M.B A,

Edward Alexander | Member BSc, MSc.

Patrick Smith Member BSc. Public Administration,
MB A

Corporate Governance:

NAME POSITION QUALIFICATION

Matthew Hogarth Chairman Attorney-at-Law LL.B

Jennmiter McDonald | Member Transformational Leader BSc.,
Diploma, M B A

Gia Abraham Member Corporate Banker (BSc)
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11. DIVIDEND POLICY IN RELATION TO PREFERENCE STOCK UNITS
The pavment of dividends on the Preference Stock Units by CAC will be pnmanly dependent on
its future profitability. Subject to this, it is the Company’s intention to pay dividends in accordance
with the Terms of Issue of the Preference Shares.
12. MATERIAL CONTRACTS
Given the nature of its business, most of the Company’s contractual arrangements relate to its
emplovees and service agreements with its customers, most of which are therefore deemed to be
on-going dealings in the ordinary course of business.
The following material contracts. not being contracts ¢ntered into in the ordinary course of
business. have been entered into by the Company with the following persons (“Counterparties™):
Date Counterparty Brief Description
1. | November 17, Hugh Wildman, Trustee | Lease for the Company’s office located at
2016 in Bankruptey and 231 Marcus Garvey Dnve, Kingston |1
Liguidator of Cash Plus | Lease term is ten (10) vears, with an option
Limited to purchase
3. | November 17, British Caribbean Private  Commercial  Motor  Vehicle
2017 Insurance Company Insurance
Limited
4. | November 1*, Guardian General All Risks Property Damage & Business
2017 Insurance Company Interruption Insurance Policy
Limited
5. | November 1%, British Caribbean Computer All Risks Insurance Policy
2017 Insurance Company
Limited
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Remuneration Committee:

NAME POSITION QUALIFICATION

Patrick Smith Chairman BSc. Public Admimstration, M.B A

Jennifer McDonald | Member Transformational Leader BSc.,
Diploma, M.B A

Edward Alexander | Member BSc, MSc

Gia Abraham Member Corporate Banker (BSe)




6. | November 17, British Caribbean Emplover’s Liabilitv Insurance Policy
2017 Insurance Company
Limited
7. | November 1%, British Caribbean Public & Products Liability Insurance
2017 Insurance Company Policy
Limited
8. | November 1%, Llovds Syndicate QBE | Excess Comprehensive General  Liability
2017 386 Insurance Policy
9. | November 17, Guardian General Loss of Money Insurance Policy
2017 Insurance Company
Limited
10. | November 1%, Guardian General Goods In Transit Insurance Policy
2017 Insurance Company
Limited
11. | November 17, British Canbbean Fidelity Guarantee Insurance Pohey
2017 Insurance Company
Limited
12. | November 1%, British Caribbcan Contractors All Risk Insurance Policy
2017 Insurance Company
Limited
13. | November 17, British Caribbean Motor Contingent  Liability  Insurance
2017 Insurance Company Policy
Lamited
14. | January 17, Llovds Management Liability Insurance Policy
2017
15. | December 17, Arthur J. Gallagher Marine Cargo Insurance Policy
2017 International
16. | November 17, Guardian Life Insurance | Group Life Insurance Policy
2017
17. | November 1%, | Sagicor Life Insurance | Group Health Insurance Policy
2017 Company
18, | Apnl 1%. 2015 | LG Electronics Panama. | Cooperative  Advertising  Agrcement  in
SA relation to LG Air Conditioning products in
Jamaica
19. | October 28", Mitsubishi Electric US| Distribution Agreement in relation to
2013 INC. HVAC products
20. | January 17, Carner Interamerica Agreement  of  Representations  and
2013 Com. Warranties
21. | July 4%, 2017 Victoria Mutual Wealth | Financial advisory and lecad brokerage
Managcment Limited services in the Invitation
23. | December 2™, Jamaica Central Registrar and Transfer Agent Scrvices in
2015 Securities Depositary relation to both the Preference Shares and
Limited the Shares in this Offer
24| August 217, (Carrier Interamerica Dealer Agreement
2000 Corp.

13. LITIGATION
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The Company is not currently involved in any material litigation nor is it aware of any pending
material lingation. CAC 2000 Limited has lodged an appeal against interest charges awarded in
the Supreme Court matter detailed below:

Claim No.: HCV 01486 of 2007
Claimant: X-Rav & Diagnostic Ultrasound Consultants Ltd
Defendant: CAC 2000 Lumited

The Company has made full provisions for this interest settlement during the 2015/16 financial
period and i1s eurrently awaiting a date for the appeal.

14. RISK FACTORS AND RISK MITIGATION

RISK FACTORS
Volatility in Stock Price
MNewlyv-issued Preference Shares may expenience significant volatility in stock price which may

extend bevond the short term and which may be dependent on CAC’s performance, investors
confidence and other factors over which CAC has no control.

Risks Specific to this Offer:

Trading History

Preference Stock Units in CAC have no observable arm’s-length trading history as they have not
previously been traded. Weither CAC nor any of its advisors can prediet the stock’s trading
behaviour afier it 15 listed on the JSE.

Legal Control

The Offering of Preference Shares will not confer legal or effective control of CAC on successful
Applicants,

Payment of Dividends and Redemption

The pavment of dividends on the Preference Stock Units and the ability of CAC to redeem them
will be primarily dependent on CAC’s future profitability.

Issue of Additional Preference Shares

The Directors of CAC mayv hereafter authorise the issue of additional preference shares in CAC.
Such preference shares, once issued and converted on issue to preference stock units. mav rank pari
passu with the existing Preference Stock Units and may be listed on the JSE or on anv other stock
exchange(s). Additional preference shares so 1ssued could affect the market price of the Preference
Stock Units.
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Countrv-Specific Risks:
Macro-Economic Policies

Changes in fiscal and monetary policies introduced by the Government of Jamaica mav
affect the behaviour of capital markets including the Junior Market. Such changes in policies may
create opportunitics as well as challenges for the Company. This is a nsk that is not faced by the
Company alone but also, by anv trading business, although the risk could have particular impact
on its particular business model.

Other Risks:

Risks Associated with International Conditions

CAC’s financial results mav be adversely affected by intemational risks, such as:
= interational political and economic conditions;
» trade barniers:

» adverse tax CONSCUCNCCS

Operational Risk

The Company 1s subject to the risk of loss resulting from disruptions to its business, inadcquate
or failed internal processes. people and svstems. or from external events (including severe
weather, other Acts of God. social unrest or insurrection). This definition also includes svstemic
risk {including the risk of accounting errors, failure to procure approprnate insurance coverage, and
complance failures), legal nsk and reputation risk. This catch-all category of nsks also includes
emplovee errors, computer and manual svstems failures, security failures, fire, floods or other losses
to physical assets, and fraud or other criminal activity or any other nisk that affects the volume of
visitor arrivals to the island, The Company 15 prudent and therefore, it insures itself against some
(but not all) of these risks: for instance, the Company is insured in respect of damage to its
business by fire, flood or other physical damage. It may not be feasible for the Company to insure
itself in respect of all of the risks mentioned. becanse no coverage mayv be available or it may not be
ceonomical to do so.

New Accounting Rules or Standards

The Company may become subject to new accounting rules or standards that differ from those
that are presently applicable. Such new accounting mles or standards could require significant
changes in the way the Company currently reports its financial position, operating results or cash
flows. Such changes could be applied retrospectively. This is a nisk that is not faced by the
Company alone but also, by any trading business.

Key Personnel
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It is important that the Company attracts and retains appropriately skilled personnel, including the
Directors of the Company, who specialize in distinet arcas of the Company’s management. It is
also important for the Company to replace personnel whose emplovment may be terminated for
any reason within a reasonable time. In Jamaica. there are a limited number of persons with the
requisite skills, knowledge and experience required by the Company. The Company will need to
attract and retain honest qualified personnel. and failure to do so could have a matenal adverse
impact on the Company’s future prospects.

Key Partners

The Company relies on its kev and on-going business relationships with customers and
suppliers. If the Company’s relationship with any of these partics is disrupted or terminated for
any reason, the Company would have to identify new customers and suppliers. However, this risk
may be mitigated by the Company’s policy of creating and maintaining symbiotic relationships
with its kev partners and by secking to provide itself with the components of its products by
investing in integrated businesses.

Uninsured Risks

The Company has procured insurance in respect of certain risks facing its business, as described
in Scetion 17 of this Prospectus, Ifthe Company suffered loss or damage to its property or facilitics
or as a result of a claim by a third party and was not able to claim successfully under its policies
of insurance for that purpose its finances could suffer and its operations could be disrupted
temporarily or permanently. The Company does however have consequential loss insurance
which would allow it to mitigate losses occasioned by an interruption of business.

RISK MITIGATION

CAC attempts to mitigate all operational risks by maintaining a comprehensive system of intemal
controls, establishing svstems and procedures to monitor transactions, maintaining kev back-up
procedures and undertaking regular contingency planning.

CAC’s management believes that there are currently no sigmificant or unusual developments
surrounding the nisks described in this Section 14,

15.  CONSENTS

KPMG. Chartered Accountants has given and not withdrawn its consent to the issue of this
Prospectus with the inclusion thercin of financial data extracted from audited financial statements
and the references o its name in the form and context in which they are included.

16. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

From the date of publication of this Prospectus, the following documents will be available for
inspection on any weekdav (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) during the hours of
9:00 am to 4:30 pm. at the offices of CAC at 231 Marcus Garvey Drive, Kingston 11. Contact may
be made with Mr. Steven Marston,
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(1
(2)
3)

the current Articles of Incorporation
the written consent of the Auditors dated March 5, 2018

The Auditor’s Report and andited financial statements of the Company for the five (3)
fiscal vears ended October 317, 2017.

17. STATUTORY AND GENERAL INFORMATION
17.1

a)  CAC has no founders or management or deferred shares.

b} The Articles of Incorporation fix no sharcholding gualification for directors and none
has been otherwise fixed by CAC in general meeting. The Articles of Incorporation
contain the following provisions with respect to the remuneration of Dircctors:

Subjeet to Article 123, the remuneration of the Directors shall be such amount as
the Directors, or any appropriate committee of the Directors, may determine. Such
remuneration shall be deemed to accrue from day to day. The Directors may also
be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them in
attending and returning from mectings of the Directors or any committee of
directors or general meetings of the Company or in connection with the business
of the Company. any Director who scrves on any Committee or who devotes
special attention to the business of the Company, or who otherwise performs
services which in the opinion of the Directors are outside the scope of the ordinary
duties of a Director, may be paid such extra remuneration by way of salary,
percentage of profits or otherwise as the Directors may determine (Article 82)

A Director who is. in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in a contract
or proposed contract with the Company shall disclose in writing to the Company the
nature and extent of his interest in accordance with section 193 of the Act (Article 94

(1.

Any contract or proposed contract referred to in Article 94(1) above shall be subject
to the approval of the Directors and such Director shall not be present during any
proceeding of the board of Directors in connection with the approval of such
contract and he shall not be counted in the quorum present at the mecting, but
neither of these prohibitions shall apply to:

{a) any arrangement for giving any [Arector any security or indemnity in respect of
money lent by him to or obligations undertaken by him for the benefit of the
Company; or

{b) any arrangement for the giving by the Company of any security to a third party
in respect of a debt or obligation of the Company for which the Director
himself has assumed responsibility in whole or in part under guarantee or
indemnity or by the deposit of a security; or

{¢) any contract by a Dircctor to subscribe for or underwrite shares or debentures
of the Company; or
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{d) any contract or arrangement with any other company in which he is interested
only as an officer of the Company or as holder of shares or other securities;

and these prohibitions may at any time be suspended or relaxed to any extent, and
generally or in respect of any particular contract, arrangement or transaction, by the
Company in general meeting (Article 94(27)

A Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other
than the office of auditor) in conjunction with his office of Dircctor for such period
and on such terms (as to remuneration and otherwise ) as the Directors may
determine and no Director or intending Dircetor shall be disqualified by his office
from contracting with the Company cither with regard to his tenure of any such
other office or place of profit or as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any
such contract, or any contract or agreement entered into by or on behalt of the
Company in which any Director 1s in any way interested. be liable to be avonded,
nor shall any Director so contracting or being so interested be liable to account to
the Company for any profit realized by any such contract or agreement by reason
of such Director holding that office or of the fAduciary relationship therchy
established (Article 94(3))

A Dircctor, notwithstanding his interest, may be counted in the quorum present at
any meeting whereat he or any other Director is appointed to hold any such office
or place of profit under the Company or whereat the terms of any such appointment
are arranged, and he may vote on any such appointment or arrangement other than
his own appointment or the arrangement of the terms thereot (Article 94(4))

Any Director may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the
Company, and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuncration for professional
services as if he were not a Director; provided that nothing herein contained shall
authorize a Director or his firm to act as auditor to the Company (Article 94 (5)).

The Director(s) on behalf of the Company, may pay a gratuity or pension or allowance
on retirement to any Director who has held any other salaried office or place of profit
with the Company or to his widow or dependents and may make contributions to any
fund and pay premiums for the purchase or provision of any such gratuity, pension or
allowance (Article 99

A Managing Director shall receive such remuneration (whether by way of salary,
commission or participation in profits, or partly in one way and partly in another) as
the board of Dircctors. or any appropriate committee of the board of Dircctors, may
determine. (Article 123)
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¢)  The names and addresses of the Directors of the CAC appear in Section 6 of this
Prospectus. The residential addresses of the respective directors are as follows:

Name of Director Residential Address
Steven Marston 22 Earls Court, Kingston &
Colin Roberts | Colombo Close, Kingston 6
Richard Powell Townhouse #4. The Villas of Farningdon.
17 Farringdon Drive, Kingston 6
Gia Abraham 22 Earls Court. Kingston 8
Edward Alexander 24 Monterey Drive. Kingston 6
Patrick Smith 11 Russell Heights. Kingston 8
Matthew Hograth 9 Plymouth Avenue , Kingston 6
Jennifer McDonald Apt North 102_ 5 Central Avenue. Kingston #

7.2 The minimum amount required to be raised out of the proceeds of the Preference Stock Issue
to provide for any of the matters set out in paragraph 2 of Part 1 of the Third Schedule to the
Act (the “minimum subscription”) 15 $20million. The expenses in connection with this Offer,
namely for advertising. printing. professional and consultancy fees, brokerage fees and
miscellancous expenses. are set out below and will be bome by the CAC. An amount of
$80million will be allocated from the proceeds of this offer for working capital support.

Item Cost (Excluding GCT)

Brokerage and Financial Advisory Fees 5 6,000,000.00
Legal fees 5 750,000.00
Registrar's Fees 5 78,228.00
Initial Listing Fees 5 149,848.00
Marketing Fees and Statutory Costs 5 240,000.00
Other Cost 5 1,781,924.00

Total $ 2,000,000.00

173 f{a) The application list will open at 9:00 am on March 16, 2018 and will close at 4:30 pm
on March 23, 2018, subject to the CAC's nght to close the application list at any time
if applications have been received for an amount in excess of the Preference Shares
offered under this Prospectus or to extend the closing date bevond March 23, 2018,

(h) All applicants will be required to pay in full, on application, the Offer Price of $1.00
per Preference Share. No further sum will be pavable on allotment.

17.4  An Offer of 110,037,000 preferences shares in the capital of the Company was made in the
financial vear 2014 with a further 38.000.000 preferences shares being offered in the financial

m“
]
EXPERTS

fﬁ
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vear 2015 In total 148,037,000 preference shares were issued seccuring for the Company
$148,037,000.00 in capital.

17.5  No person has, or is entitled to be given, any option to subscribe for any shares in, or

debentures of, CAC.

176 (a) As at October 31, 2017 CAC held investments in sccuritics, amounting (o
$100,768.954 00. These are primarily foreign currency short term deposits. For further
details please sce Mote 7 of the Financial Statcments referred to in Section 9 of the
Prospectus

{b) There is no amount for goodwill, patent., or trademarks shown in the financial  statements
of CAC and there 15 no contract for sale and purchase which would involve any goodwill,

patent or trademarks,

(c)  The aggregate amount of bank loans and overdrafis owing by the CAC as at October 31,
2017 is $253.900.204.00. For further details with respect to loan and borrowings see
Note 9 to the Financial Statements referred to in Section 9 of this Prospectus.

(d) No amount is recommended for distribution by way of dividend.

7.7  No property has been or s proposed to be purchased or acquired by the CAC, which 1s to be
paid for wholly or partly out of the proceeds of this Offer, and accordingly, paragraph 6 of Part
I of the Third Schedule of the Companies Act does not apply.

17.8  For the reason stated in paragraph 17.7 above, paragraph 7 of Part 1 of the Third Schedule to
the Companics Act does not apply.

7.9 For the reason stated in paragraph 17.7 above, paragraph 8 of Part | of the Third Schedule to
the Compames Act does not apply.

17.10  For the reason stated in paragraph 17.7 above, paragraph 9 of Part | of the Third Schedule to
the Companies Act does not apply.

17.11  (a) Within the two preceding vears, no commissions have been paid. nor will any be pavable
to anvone for subscribing or agrecing to subscribe or procuring or agrecing to procure
subscriptions for any shares or debentures of the CAC.

(b) The total expenses of the Offer is estimated at J$9,000,000.00 and will be pavable for the
services identified in paragraph 17.2 above.

(c) Within the last two vears preceding the date of this Prospectus. no amount or benefit has
been paid or given or is intended to be paid or given to any promoter.

17.12 The name and address of the auditors of the CAC are:

KPMG. Chartered Accountants
The Victona Mutual Building
6 Duke Street

Kingston
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17.13  The authorised share capital of the Company consists of 200,000,000 ordinary shares of no par
value and 350,000,000 Redeemable Cumulative Fixed and Variable Preference Shares. The
1ssued share capital of the Company consists of 129,032 258 ordinary shares of no par value
and 148037000 Redeemable Cumulative Fixed and Vanable Preference Shares. Subject to any
rights or restrictions for the time being attached to classes of sharcs. on a show of hands cvery
member present in person shall have one vote, and on a poll every member shall have one vote
for cach sharc of which he is the holder. (Sec Article 67). The Preference Stock Units
(following conversion on issue of the Preference Shares) do not carry the right to vote save in
narrowly prescribed circumstances,

17.14 CAC has carried on business as CAC since Julv 24™ 2000.
General Information
Articles of Incorporation

The core businesscs of the Company arc:

DEALERS, INSTALLERS, MAINTAINERS AND REPAIRERS OF AIR CONDITIONERS AN
AR CONDITIONING EQUIPMENT.

The above and objects/powers of the CAC are set out in full in the Articles of Incorporation,
which i1s among the documents available for inspection as noted in Section 16 of this
Prospectus.

Dividends

The Company in general meeting may declare dividends. but no dividend shall exceed the

amount recommended by the Directors.

Conversion of Shares to Stock

The Company is authonsed to convert shares of the Company into stock units by ordinary
resolution passed by the Company.

Power h its own Sh

The Company has power, subject to the provisions of the Companics Act, 2004, to exercisc to
the fullest extent, the powers granted by sections 58 and 59, of the Companies Act, to purchase
or otherwise deal in its own shares and the Company may, to the extent permitted by law give,
whether directlv or indirectly, and whether by means of a loan, guarantee, the provision of
security or otherwise, any financial assistance for the purpose of or in connection with a
purchase or subscription made or to be made by any person of or for anv shares in the Company
orin its holding company (if anv) and the Company may, to the extent permitted by law, make
a loan for anv purpose whatsocver on the security of its shares or those of its holding company
(1f anv).

Director’s Indemnity

To the fullest extent permitted by sections 201, 202 and 203 of the Compamies Act, 2004 every
Director or other officer of CAC or their respective legal representatives 1s entitled to be
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indemnified out of the assets of CAC against all costs. charges, expenses. awards of damages,
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur:

(i) in respect of any civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which he 1s
made a party by reason of being or having been a Director or officer of the Company:

(i1) i connection with any denvative action;

(ii1) in connection with any application under section 389 of the Companics Act in a casc
where relief is granted by the Court.

Di : fficers” Liability In

The Directors are authorised to effect and maintain at the cost of CAC, such Dircctors”™ &
Officers” Liability insurance as they shall deem fit.

Director’s interest in contracts

It a Director is in any way directly or indirectly interested in a contract or proposed contract
with CAC, he must disclose the nature and extent of his interest in wnting and the affected
Director may not be present during any Board meeting at which the contract 1s considered
for approval and may be counted in the quorum,

ica Taxation

Under current legislation, CAC’s taxable surplus is subjeet to tax at the rate of 253%. Tax on
dividends paid by the Company will be at the rate of 13%. Capital distributions are subject
to transfer tax {(currently 3% on the amount of the distnbution). The transfer of Preference
Stock Units on the JSE is exempt from transfer tax and ad valorem stamp duty. If the
Preference Stock Units are transterred other than by way of the facilities of the CAC then
such transfer tax (currently 5%) and stamp duty (currently approximately 1%) would be
chargeable. Applicants should consult their own tax advisors, with respect to other possible
tax implications.

The Offer contained in this Prospectus is not underwritten,
Insurance

The Company has procured sufficient insurance cover for all major nisks that relate to its
business. This includes:

Private Commercial Motor Vehicle Insurance

All Risks Property Damage & Business Interruption Insurance Policy
Computer All Risks Insurance Policy

Emplover’s Liability Insurance Policy

Public & Products Liability Insurance Policy

Excess Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Policy

Loss of Money Insurance Policy

R ,e B0 TR
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h Goods In Transit Insurance Policy

i Fidelity Guarantee Insurance Policy

1. Contractors All Risk Insurance Policy

k Motor Contingent Liability Insurance Policy
I Management Liability Insurance Policy

m. Marine Cargo Insurance Policy
n. Group Life Insurance Policy
0. Group Health Insurance Policy

All of the abovementioned policies of insurance are valid for varving time periods.
Confirmation of the insurance arrangements referred to in this section will be available for
mspection as described in Section 16, The company is currently considering additional
insurance policies, namely Key Man Insurance.

Pensions

Emplovees voluntarily participate in a Scotiabridge Pension Scheme. The Company
matches emplovee contribution up to a maximum of 3% of salarv (emplovees are permitted

to contribute a higher portion f they so desire). Currently they are 21 emplovees
participating in the Pension Scheme.

18. APPLICATION PROCEDURES AND CONDITIONS OF OFFER

Application Procedures, Terms and Conditions

All Application Forms must be submitted together with pavment for the Preference Shares in the
form of either:

(a) amanager’s cheque made pavable to *Victoria Mutual Wealth Management Limited™
if the subscription amount is less than J$1,000,000.00; or

(b) authonsation from the Applicant on the Application Form, instructing VM Wealth to
make pavment from cleared funds held with VM Wealth in an investment account in the

Applicant’s name; or

(c) where applicable, proof of payvment to VM Wealth made electronically using either
the RTGS pavment svstem or by wire transfer. Absolutely no cash will be collected.

All completed Application Forms must be delivered to VM Wealth at any of its offices. as shown

below:
KINGSTON MANDEVILLE
53 Knutsford Boulevard Shop #3, Manchester Shopping Centre
Kingston 5 Mandeville
Telephone: (876)-960-3000-3 Telephone: (876)-962-7215
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PORTMORE MONTEGO BAY

Lot 1 Scagrape Closc Unit 8, Summit Business Centre,
Portmore. Saint Cathenne Lot 3, Straddle Dnve Bogue Estates,
Telephone: (376)-988-8603 Montego Bay, Saint James

Telephone: (876)-684-9806

Application Forms must apply for a mimimum denomination of $30,000.00. Applications in cxcess
of that number must be in multiples of $10.000.00. Application Forms in other denominations will
not be processed or accepted.

l.

2.
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Applications must be for a minimum of 50,000 Preference Shares and multiples of 10.000.

The Directors of CAC in their sole discretion may accept (in whole or in part) or reject any
application to purchase Preference Shares even if the application 1s received. validated and
processed. The acceptance may be in respect of the whole or anv part of the application
and, accordinglv, the allocated number of Preferenee Shares may be less than the amount
specified in the Application Form,

The acceptance by CAC of an application to subscribe for the Preference Shares (in whole
or in part) will result in a binding contract under which the Applicant will be deemed to
have agreed to subscribe for the Preference Shares in respect of which the application has
been accepted at the Offer Price.

If the Offer is oversubscribed. the Preference Shares may be allotted to Applicants on a
basis to be determined by CAC in its sole discretion.  Applicants may be allotted fower
Preference Shares than they applied for.

In respect of each Application which is accepted in whole or in part by CAC, CAC will
issue a letter of allotment in the name of that Applicant (or in the joint names of joint
Applicants) for the number of Preference Shares allotted to the Applicant. The letters of
allotment will be sent to the stockbrokers listed in Section 5 of this Prospectus who will
distribute same to the Applicants, along with a cheque for the portion of the subscription
monies which is refundable to the Applicant if the Application has only been accepted in
part.

Cheques for the amounts refundable to Applicants whose Applications arc not accepted
will be sent to the stockbrokers listed in Scetion 5 of this Prospectus who will distribute
same to the Applicants. CAC will usc its best efforts to send the letters of allotment and
refund cheques to the stockbrokers within ten working davs after the Closing Date or as
soon thereafter as practicable.

Each letter of allotment and refund cheque will be mailed through the post at the
Applicant’s risk to the address of the Applicant {or of the first-named joint Applicant)
stated in the Application Form.

Letters of allotment are not transferable or assignable.




19.  DIRECTOR’S SIGNATURES

Signed on behalf of CAC 2000 Ltd by the below-mentioned Directors, for and on behalf of the
Directors of the Company. on the 3 day of March, 2018.

Name of Director/Secretary Original Signed By:
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APPENDIX 1
Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements
[See following pages|

KPMG

Chartered Accountants
PO. Box 76

6 Dukos Streat

Kingsion

Jarmaica, W

+1 (876) 822 6640
hfmn"aulﬂtprnq COm.jm

INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To tha Members of
CAC 2000 LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Olpurnion

We have audited the financial staterments of CAC 2000 Limited (“the
Compary "), set out on pages B to 42, which comprise the statement of
fhinancial position as at Octobar 31, 2017, the statemants of prolit or loss and
other comprahensne moome, changes in stockholders’ net equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, compnsing ssgnificant accounting
policies and other explanatory information

In our opinon, the SCCoMPanyIng financial statemants @rve 8 trud and fask vierey
of the financial position of the Company as at October 31, 2017, and of its
financial perforrnance and s cash flows for the year then ended in sccordances
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFARS) and the Jamaican
Companies Act

Basss for Opinon

We conducted our sudit in accordance with Intemnational Standards on Auditing
(I5As). Our respansibilities under those standards are furthes described in tha
Auditors” Responsibuities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are indepandent of the Company in accordance with the
international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethacs for
Protessonal Accountants (IESBA Codel, and we have fulfilled our othar athical
responsibidities in accordance wath the IESBA Code. We belseve that the audit
evidence we have obtained i3 sulficient and approprate 10 provice & basis for
DUT CpsrEsn

R g e e ey e T o R VL o i S T g . Bt i
R e e e L S 8 Charears Tt % B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ICONT'D)

To the Members of
CAC 2000 LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemeants [continued)

Koy Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters

1 Recoverability of debtor balances

The key audit matter

The Company has significant
overdue balances with
customers. Thera is significant
judgement involved in
determining the levels of
allowance for impairment on
these balances. because of
the unceriainty involved in
estimating the timing and
amount of future collections
given the nature of the
customers and the spacific
industry in which the

Company operates

The use of judgemeant
increases the risk that
management’s estimate could
e matenally misstated

PROSPECTUS | Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Qur procedures in this area included

Tasting the manual and automated
controls over recording and ageing
receivables. Our testing of
automated controls involved using
our own Information Technology
Audit specialists 1o test the design,
implementation and oparating
effectiveness of automated
controls;

Testing subsaquent receipts for
selected customers;

Evaluating the adequacy of the
allowance for impairment
recognised in respect of the
Company’s receivables, lesting the
underlying data used and re-
performing the calculation;

Evaluating the adequacy of the
disclosures about the degree of
estimation involved in anfiving at the
impairment allowance,;

Reviewing the accuracy of the
disclosures in respect of the ageing
of the trade recenvables and the
impairment allowance

47
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS” REPORT [CONT DI
To the Members of
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements [continued)

Koy Audit Matlers {continued)

2. Ravanue recogrition using the parcantage-of cormpletion method

The key audit metter How the matier was addressed in
our audit
The Company recognises Cur procedures in this area included

revenue from its engineering
contracts based on the
percentaga of completion

Rewviewing the progress claims
reaparts fram the angineers for thosa

i claims not cernfied and assessing
{POC) method y
: the reasonableness of the estimates
5-.E|r:fi::u=| nt management made.
judgemient is involwad in + Evaluating the effectivenass of
rranagamant’s contrals aver tha
« Estimating the physical imput costs.

proportion of the

; o Recomputing the revenues and the
campleted work for the =

costs recognised for the current

contracts: financial year based an the
¢ The estimatien ol the wal respective stage of completion and
ot on the complated the: contract valuss
contracts, including «  Evaluating the adequacy of the
contingencies that could disclosures in respect of the
arise from variations o revarue from construction
origingl contract terms and COnMracs
claims

Cther Informatian

Manegernent 2 responsible for the other informnation, The other information
comprises the information included in the annual regort but does not include
the financial statemeants and our auditars’ report thereon. The annual report s
expecied 10 be made availanle 10 us after the date af this auciters’ repart.

Qur opimion on the financial staterments does not cover the ather information
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion therean
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INDEFEMDENT AUDITORS REFORT (CONT' D

To the Members of
CAC 2000 LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Othar Inforrmation (continued)

In cannection with cur audit of the financial statermaents, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether tha other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements o our knowledge obiained in the sudit, o
otherwyise appears to be materally misstated.

When we read the annuwal report, it we conclude that there is 2 matanal
misstatement thergin, we are required 0 communicate the matier 0 those
charged with governance

Responsibiites of Management and Those Charged with Govemanes for the
Finarcial Siatemants

hManagemeont is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRS and the Jamaican Companies Act,
and for such intemnal control a3 management determines is necessary to enable
the cregaration of financial s1atements 1hat are free from matenal
migstatement, whether due to fraud of error

In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible far assessing
the Company's ability 10 conlinue &s a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable,
matiars related 1o gaing concern and using the going concarn basis of
acocounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o
cease gperations, of has no realistic alternative bul to do 5o,

Those charged with governance are responsibla for averseaing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auctitors” Respansibifnes for the Audit of the Financral Staternants

Clur objectives are 10 abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statemants as a who'a are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o
fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditors’ report that includes our opanon.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 15 not @ guarantes that
an audit conducted in accordance with |54 will always detact a material
misstalement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from frawd or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reascnably e expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial staterments.
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INDEFEMDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'CH

T the Members of
CAC 2000 LIMITED

Report on additional matters as required by the Jamaican Companies Act

A turther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the fingncial
statermants s included in the Appendix (o this auditors’ report. This
desariphion, which is locatesd at pages € - 7, forms par of aur auditors’
report.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, 1o the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit

In our opinien, groper agoounuing records have been maintained, so far as
appeats from our examination of those recosds, and tha financial statameants,
wihich are in agreement therewith, give the information required by the
Jaraican Companies Astin the manner requirad

The engagement partner on tha audit resulting in this independent audiiors’
report is Rajan Trehan

lefrG

Chartered Accountants
Kingston, Jamaica

December 22, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT D}

T the Members of
CAC 2000 LIMITER

Appendix 1o the Independent Auditors’ report

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain profassional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and aszess the risks of matenal misstaternent of the financial
statemants, whether due to fraud or errer, dasign and perform aucit
arocedures responsive o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk of not
detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
gne resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
pmissions, misrepresentations, of the owerride of internal contral

=  Qbtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order 1o
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul nol
for the purpose of expressing an opimon on the elfectivenass of the
Caompany's intermal cantral,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
managermant.

« Conclude on the aporopiateness ol managermeant's usa of the gaing
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whather 8 material uncertainty exists related 1o events or canditions that
may cast significamt doubt on the Company's ability to continue a5 a8 going
concern. If we conclude that 2 matenal uncartamty exists, wa are reguired
to drawy attention in sur auditors” repon to the related disclosures inthe
financial staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madily cur
ppanion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o
the date of our auditors” report. However, future avents or eenditions may
cause the Company 10 cease 1o conlinue as 8 going concerm.

s Evaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the aisclosuras, and whether the financial
slaterments reprasent the undarying transactions and avants in a mannas
that achieves lair presentation,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPCAT {CONT'D)

Ta the Membars of
A LIMITED

Appendix to the Independent Auditors’ report [continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance ragarding, amang other
matiers, the planned scope and lming of the audit ard significant audit
findings, including any sigaificant deficiencias m internal control that we
entify during our awdit

W also provide those charged with governances with a statermnent that we have
complied with relevant ethcal reguirements regarding independence, and
communicate with tham all relationshios and other matters that may
reasanably be thougnt to bear on ow independence, ard where applicable,
related saleguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with govamanca, wa
determing those maters that were of most sigrificance in the audit of the
financial stetemants of the current periad and are therefore the key audit
matters, YWe describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless aw ar
regulation preciudes public disclosure aboul the matiar of when, i exwarely
rare circumstances, we dalarmine that a marter should not be communicated
in our report because the adversa consaquances of doing so would reasonabhy
be expected 10 cutweigh the public interest benalits of such communication.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position
October 30,2017
Motes 2017 2016
$ 5
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 45,550,889 51,702,954
Long-term receivables 4 218069 1573611
Total non-current assets A5TTR.958 53276 363
Current assets
Income tax recoverable 3,019,665 1,935,494
Inventories 5 208385972 280,302,421
Due from related parties 11ia) - 1,664 849
Trade and other receivables ] 536,331,072 156,656,285
Cash and bank deposits 7 191,695,143 LS7.874.354
Total current assets 23943 1,853 198,433,603
Total assets 285210810 BEL710.168
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Stockholders’ equity
Share capital B 129,189,757 129,189,757
Retained camings 223903431 193,167,268
Total stockholders' equity 423.093,188 3221.357.025
Moa-currenl liabilities
Loans and borrowings 9 4,013,104 153917254
Obligations under finance lease [ 4076643 6735311
Total non-current liabilitics _B.089.747 160,652,565
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 9 249 887,100 1,734,271
Due to related parties 11(b) 5,422,439 3,520,384
Trade and other payables 12 295903418 I59.T12.5T7
Current portion of obligations under finance lease 10 2,658,668 3673346
Taxation payable — 136,250 ——
Total current liabilities 554,007,875 368,700,578
Total equity and labilites 985210810 E3LT10.168

The financial statements on pages 8 10 42 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
22..11]I? and signed on its behalf by:

Chief Executive Officer

37 -

The accompanying notes. form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

Revenue 13
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Ihstmbution expenses
Administrative expenses

Total distnbution and administrative expenses 14

Court awarded damages, net 20(1)

Other income
Profit beflore finance cost and taxation
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains

Interest income
Interest expense

Net finance cost 16
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation 17
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR

THE YEAR

Earnings per stock unit:
Based on stock units in issue 19

The accompanying nobes form an integral part of ihe financial siatemenis
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2017

s

1.210.935472
(__786,500,045)

424.435.427

{ 37.421.374)

2016
5

1.017.610973
(_607,527,493)

410,083 480

( 31.851.898)

{ 1]" -I-_.I"E I'I'l] { 255 502 932)
(__308,890.496) (_287,354.830)
115535931 122,728,650
- (_104,181.618)
2,115,167 169411
117,651,098 18.716.443
| 2.277.238) 6,926,000
1. 090,090 1,406,350
(_15.949.599) (__15.733.068)
(_12.136747) ( 7,400, 7] 8)
100,514,351 11,315,725
221,812 « 845.746)
—100.736,163  _10.469.979
5 0.78 0.08




CAC 2000 LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Stockholders” Net Equity
For the year ended October 31, 2017

Share Retained
capial SANINgs Total
inote 8)
b 5 5
Balances at October 31, 2015 500,000 204,632,773 205,132,773
Issued shares 138.273.634 - 138.273.634
Share issue costs { 9.583,37T) - { 9.583.877)
Total comprehensive income for
the vear - 10469979 10.469.979
Dividends (note 18) - (_21.935484)  (_21.935484)
Balances at October 31, 2016 129, 189,757 193167268 3X2 357,025
Total comprehensive income for
the vear - 100,736,163 1M}, 736, 163
Balances at October 31, 2017 129 189 757 23 03431 et 23,

The accompanying noles form an mtegral part of the financial stalements.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the vear

Adjustments for:
Taxation
Depreciation
Allowance for doubtful debts
Provision for inventory obsolescence
Interest expense
Interest income

Operatng cash flows before movemens in working
capital
Movements in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other pavables
Due from related parties

Cash generated by operations
Interest pand
Income tax pmd

Net cash (used)/generated by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

et cash used by invesiing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend pand
Repayment of bank loans
Due to related parties

Finance lease, net
Proceeds from bank loans

Proceeds from issue of redeemable preference shares

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares. net
Wet cash provided by financing activity

Notes

MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END

OF THE YEAR

The accompanying notes fonm an mtegral part of the financial statements.
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100,736,163

( 221.812)
20,505,700
( 10.938.210)
( 4.090.136)
15,949,599
(_1,090,090)

120.851.214

76,006,585
(167.245.183)
[ 64,872,775

1664, 549

11

It
=4
L=

10,469,979

845,746
14,915,160
6.996.027
1.032.249
15.733 068

(_1,406,350)

48585879

( 53.254.800)
( 80.335.514)
177.475.222

4,626,931

( 33.595.310)
( 14,945 983)
( 789.908)

97,097,628
( 15.733.068)
(_15,959,720)

(_49.331.201)

65,404, 840

( 14,353.635)
1028036

( 35.954,999)
1.383.589

(13,325,599)

(345714100

( 37.326.672)

( 10659.815)  ( 1.673361)

1.902.055 { 34.400.305)
( 3.673.346) 10,408,657
100, 90E 495 -

- 128.689.757
96,477,389 05,698,076
33,820,580 96,531,506
157.874.554 61.343.048
191 695 143 s 55
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements

For the vear ended October 31, 2017

M

Identificati

CAC 2000 Limuted (the Company) 1s incorporated and domuciled in Jamaica. On January 7,
2016, the Company’s ordinary shares were listed on the Jamaica Junior Stock Exchange
through an Initial Public Offering (see note £). The ultumate parent company is Canbbean Air
Conditioning Company Limited, a company incorporated and domiciled in St. Lucia. The
principal acuvities of the Company are the sale of air conditioning equipment and installation
and maintenance of such systems. The Company's registered office is 231 Marcus Garvey
Drnive, Kingston 11.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance:

The financial statements are prepared n accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and their interpretations, issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and comply with the provisions of the Jamaican
Companies Act.

New and amended standards that became effective during the year

Centain new and amended standards came into effect during the current financial vear.
The adoption of these standards and amendments did not result in any change to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

New standards and amendments to existing standards not vet effective

At the date of approval of the financial statements. there were certain standards and
interpretations which were in issue but not vet effective. Those which are considered
relevant to the Company are as follows:

o [FRS 9, Financial Instruments, which 1s effecuve for annual reporuing penods
beginning on or afier January 1, 2018, replaces the existing guidance in [AS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised
guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and habilines,
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment of financial
assets and the new general hedge accounting requirements. [t also camies forward
the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39.
Although the permissible measurement bases for financial assets - amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and fair value though profit
or loss (FVTPL) - are similar 1o [AS 39, the criteria for classification into the
appropriate measurement category are significantly different.  IFRS 9 replaces the
‘incurred loss’ model in [AS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss” model, which means
that a loss event will no longer need to occur before an impairment allowance is
recognised.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2007

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(a)  Statement of compliance (cont™d):

o |FRS 15, Revenue From Conracts With Customers, effecuve for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1. 2018, replaces IAS 11-Construction Contracis, LAS
18 -Revenne, IFRIC 13 - Customer Lovalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 -Agreements for
the Consiruction of Real Estare, IFRIC 18- Transfer of Assets from Customers and
SIC-31 Revenne — Barter Transactions Iavelving Advertising Services, It does not
apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in
the scope of other IFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of
business exchange non-monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties,

The Company will apply a five-step model to detenmine when 1o recognise revenue,
and at what amount. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or
as) an entity transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount 1o
which the entity expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are met,
revenue is recognised at a pomnt in time, when control of goods or senices 1s
transferred to the customer: or over time, in a manner that best reflects the entity’s
performance.

There will be new gualitative and quantitatve disclosure requirements 1o describe the
nature, amount, timing, and uncenainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

s [FRS 16, Leases, which 1s effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees, which
distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet
operating leases. Instead. there is a single. on-balance sheet accounting model that is
smilar to current finance lease accounting. Compames will be required to bring all
major leases on-balance sheet, recognising new assets and labilities. The on-balance
sheet liabality will attract interest; the total lease expense will be higher in the early
vears of a lease even if a lease has fixed regular cash remtals, Optional lessee
exemption will apply to short-term leases and for low-value items with value of
USS5.000 or less.

Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice as the lessor will continue to
classify leases as finance and operating leases.

Early adoption is permitted if [FRS 15, Revenne from Contracrs with Customers, is
also adopted.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and siegmficant accounting policies (cont™d)

{a) Statement of compliance (cont'd):

New standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards not vet
effective (cont*d)

*  Amendments o IAS 7, Starement of Cash Flows, effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017, requires an entty to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in habilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
flows.

s Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes, effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2017, clarifies the following:

- the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrving amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the
reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the carrying
amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset.

- adeferred tax asset can be recognised if the future bottom line of the tax return is
expected to be a loss. if certain conditions are met.

- Future taxable profits used to establish whether a deferred tax can be recognised
should be the amount calculated before the effect of reversing temporary
ditferences.

- An entity can assume that it will recover an asset for more than its carrying
amount 1t there 15 sufficient evidence that 1t 1s probable that the entity will
achieve this.

- Deductible temporary differences related to unrealised losses should be assessed
on a combined basis for recognition unless a tax law restricts the use of losses o
deductions against income of a specific tvpe.

The Company 1s assessing the impact, if any. of the amendments and new standards on
its financial statements when the standards become effective,

(b}  Basis of preparation:

The fnancial statements are presented m Jamaica dollars (S). which 15 the functional
currency of the Company.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, The sigmficant
accounting policies stated in paragraphs (¢) to (v) below conform in all material respects
with [FRS.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Swatement of comphiance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)

ic) Use of estimates and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements to conform to IFRS requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilines,
contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the reporting date and the income and
expense for the vear then ended. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estumate is revised 1f the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of matenial adjustment in
the next financial vear are discussed below:

(i) Allowance for impairment losses on receivables:

In determumng amounts recorded for mmpairment of losses m the financial
statements, management makes judgements regarding mdicators of mmpairment,
that 15, whether there are indicators that suggest there may be a measurable
decrease i the estmated future cash flows from recervables, for example, based on
default and adverse economic conditions. Management also makes estimates of the
likely estimated future cash flows from impaired receivables as well as the timing
of such cash flows. Historical loss experience 1s apphed where indicators of
impairment are not observable on individual significant receivables with similar
characteristics, such as credit risks.

(1) Net realisable value of inventories:

Esumates of net realisable value are based on the most reliable evidence available
al the nme the estimates are made, of the amount the mventonies are expecied o
realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly
relating to events oceurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events
confirm conditions existing at the end of the period.

Estimates of net realisable value also take into consideration the purpose for which
the invermory 15 held.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Swatement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(<)

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements (cont’d);
() Revenue recogmised from construction contracts:

Revenues from construction contracts are determined on the cost-plus basis with
reference to the stage of completion. Estimates of the total costs of the contract is
made at the mital stage of the contract and 1s reassessed on an ongoing basts. The
percentage of completion method 15 applied on a cumulative basis in each
accounting period to the current estimates of contract revenue and contract costs,
Therefore, the effect of a change in the esumate of contract revenue or contract
costs, or the effect of a change in the estimate of the outcome of a contract, is
accounted for as a change in accounting estmate. The changed estimates are used
in the determination of the amount of revenue and expenses recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 1n the peniod in which
the change is made and in subsequent periods.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be estimated reliably, no profit is
recognised. However, even though the outcome of the contract cannot be estimated
reliably, 1t may be probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenues. In such cases, anv expected excess of total contract costs over total
contract revenue for the contract 1s recognised as an expense mmmediately.

It 15 reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next
financial vear that are different from those assumptions could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount reflected in the financial statements.

Property. plant and equipment:

(1)  Property, plant and equipment are measured at histonical cost or deemed cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures
that are directly atmbutable to the acquisiion of the asset. The cost of replacing
part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The
costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recogmised in
profit or loss.

An item of property, plant and equipment 1s derecognmised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefit is expected to arise from the continued use of the assets.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrving amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended October 31, 2017

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and sigmificant accounting policies {cont’d)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (cont”d):
(it) Depreciation;
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis at annual rates estimated to write

down the property, plant and equipment to their estimated residual values at the
end of their expected useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements - Owver the term of the lease
Motor vehicles - 5years

Plant, machinery and tools - 10 vears

Furniture, fixmres and equipment - 10 years

Computers and related equipment 3 vears

The deprecianon methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the
reporting date.

{e)  Impairment of tangble assers:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the camrving amoums of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such mdication exasts. the recoverable amount of the asset 1s
estimated in order 1o determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it 1s not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an mdividual asset. the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistert basis of allocation can be 1denufied, corporate assets
are also allocated 1o individual cash generating unit. or otherwise they are allocated 1o the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be idemified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of
monev and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of furure cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrving amount, the carrving amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrving amount of the asset (cash-
generating mit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrving amount does not exceed the carryving amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating wnit) in
prior vears, A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes 1o the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Swtement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
() Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o both a financial asset of one
enterprise and a financial liability or equity instnument of another enterprise. For the
purpose of these financial statements, financial assets have been determined to include
cash and cash equivalents. amounts due from related parties and trade. and other
receivables.  Similarly, financial liabilities inchudes accounts payvable, loans and
borrowings and amounts due to related parties.

(g) Inventories:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined
on the weighted average cost basis. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress
comprises raw and packaging matenials, direct labour, other direct costs and a proportion
of related production overheads, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(h)  Accounts receivable:
Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost, less impairment losses,
(1) Related parties:

A related party 1s a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its
financial statements (referred to in IAS 24 Relared Party Disclosures as the “reporting
entity™),

{a) A person or a close member of that person’s famuly 15 related 1o a reporting entity if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(11) has signficant mfluence over the reporting entity: or

(ni) 15 a member of the key management personnel of the reporiing entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.

(b An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which
means that each parent. subsidiary and fellow subsidiary 15 related 1o the
others).
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(1) Related parties (cont’d):

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies
(cont’d):

(1) Ome entity 1s an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other enuty is a
member).

in1) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) Ome entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity 15 an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity 15 a post-employvment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of
either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the
reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related
to the reporting entity,

ivi) The entity is controlled. or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

ivit] A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entiy).

(viti) The entity or its parent is provided with key management personnel services
by the management enuty.
A related party transaction 15 a transler of resources, services or obligations between
related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged

(1} Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash and bank balances and other short-term
uvestments with maturities ranging between one and three months from the reporting
date, and which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash without sigmificant
change in value.

(k)  Share capital:

Ordinary shares are classified as equity when there 15 no obligation 1o transfer cash or
other assets.

The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments
i accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the imstmment.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Statement of comphiance. basis of preparation and sienificant accounting policies (cont’d)

(k)  Share capital (cont”d):
In the case of its preference share capital, it is classified as:

(1} equity if it 15 non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s option. and
any dividends are discretionary: in such a case, dividends thereon are recommised
as distributions within equity;

(2)  liability if it 1s redeemable on a specific date or at the option of the stockholders,
or if dividends are not discretionary: in such a case dividends thereon are
recognised as mterest in profit or loss.

The Company’s redeemable preference shares are classified as financial habilities as they
bear non-discretionary dividends and are redeemable in cash by the holders. Non-
discretionary dividends are recognised as interest expense in profit or loss as a
component of net finance costs/income as accrued.

(1)  Borrowing costs:

Banks and other loans are recogmised imitially at cost, Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost. with any difference between
cost and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the

borrowing on an effective mterest basis.
im) Leases:

Leases m which a sigmficant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership 1s retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a sirnight-line basis aver the lease term, except where another svstematic basis
15 more representative of the nme pattern m which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arnsing under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease of property. plant and equipment where the Company has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the mception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charge so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations to the lessor, net of finance charges,
are recorded in long term liabilities.

The interest element of the finance cost i1s charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liabihity for each peniod. The motor vehicles acquired under finance leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the useful hfe of the asset or the lease term.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and sigmificant accounting policies (cont'd)
(n)  Accounts pavable:
Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost.
(o) Taxation:
Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently pavable and deferred tax.
(1)  Current tax

The tax currently pavable is based on taxable profit for the vear. Taxable profit
differs from the profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other vears and 1tems
that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s hability for cwrent tax 1s
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted. or subsequently enacted at the
end of the reporting period.

(1i) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recogmised on differences between the carrving amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary ditferences. Deferred tax assets are recogmised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period. to recover or settle the carrving amount
of its assets and Liabilities.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

(p) Emplovee benefits:

(1}  Short-term emplovee benefits:

Emploves entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to
emplovees. An accrual 15 made for the estimated hability for annual leave for
services rendered by emplovees up to the end of the reporting period.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contimued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(p)  Emplovee benefits (cont’d):
(i1)  Defined contnibution plans:

Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plans 1s expensed as the related
services are provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payviments is available.

(q) Revenue recognition:

Revenue 15 measured at the far value of the consideration recerved or recervable and
represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of
busmess. Revenue 15 reduced for discounts. rebates and other simular allowances.

(i)  Installations

The Company recognises the revenues and costs of installation contracts in profit
or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. Conlract expenses
are recognised as incurmred unless they create an asset related o future contract
actvity. Full provision is made for all anucipated losses based on estimated final
completion costs.

(1)  Service contracts

The Company recognises revenue when service is provided under the terms of the
contract.

() Construction contracts

Construction contract revenue recogmsed results from infrastructure improvements
and renovations under contracts specifically negotiated with a customer under a
Joint arrangement (see note 21).

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any
variations in contract work. claims and incentive payvments, to the extent that it 1s
probable that they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably.

If the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, then contract
revenue 15 recogmsed m profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of
the coniract. The stage of completion is assessed with reference o the contract
costs incurred in relation to the estimated total contract costs. Otherwise, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely 1o
be recoverable.

Contract expenses are recognised as incurred unless they create an asset related to
future contract activity. An expected loss on a contract 15 recogmsed immediately
in profit or loss,

(1v) Sale of goods

Eevenue ansimg on the outright sale of equipment and spare parts 1s
recognised on invoicing and the customer taking delivery of items.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Statement of compliance. basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(r)  Jomt operatons:

The Company entered into a joint arrangement that is not structured through a separate
vehicle and as such is accounted for as a joint operation. The contractual arrangement
between the Company and the other party to the joint arrangement outlines each parties'
rights to the assets. and obligations for the liabilities. relating to the arrangement, and the
partics' rights to the comresponding revenues and obligations for the corresponding
expenses,

The Company accounts for the asseis, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating 1o its
involvement in the joint operation in accordance with the relevant IFRSs.

(s)  Segment reporting:

An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities
from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses; whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the enuty’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance; and
for which discrete financial information 1s available,

The Company has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the
Company's strategic business units. The strategic business units offer different products
and services, to different customer base, and are managed separately because they require
different resources and marketing strategies.

Segment results, mclude tems directly attnbutable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis,

The primary reportable segments are:

(1)  Enzineering - Sale and mstallation of industrial equipment
(11) Residenual, Light and Commercial (RLC) - Sale of smaller turnkey equipment
(1) Service — After sale service and maintenance

The Company”s operations are primarily carried out in Jamaica
Transactions between business segments have been eliminated.
(1) Net finance cost;

MNet finance income comprises interest pavable on long-term loan, calculated using the
effective interest rate method, interest income on funds invested and foreign exchange
gains and losses recognised in profit or loss,

Interest mcome from a financial asset 1s recogmsed when it 15 probable that the econonuc
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of the income can be measured
reliably.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contined)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

2. Swatement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accomnting policies (cont’d)

(1) Net finance cost (cont"d):

Interest mcome 15 accrued on a e basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable. which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
Caying amount on initial recognition.

(u) Foreign currencies:

Transactions m foreign eurrencies are converted at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies.
which are stated at historical cost. are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date. Foreign exchange differences arising from fluctuations in exchange rates
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, which are stated at historical cost, are wanslated at the foreign
exchange rate miling at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated m foreign currencies that are stated at farr value are translated to the
functional currency at the foreign exchange rates mling at the dates that the values were
determined.

(v) Dividends:
Dividends are recognised in the period in which they are declared.
(w) Provisions:

A provision is recognised in the statement of finanecial position when the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event. and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation. If the effect 15
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and.
where appropriate, the risks specific to the obligation.

(x) Determination of profit and loss:

Profit 15 determuned as the difference between the revenues from the goods and services
rendered and the costs and other charges incumed during the vear. Profits on transactions
are taken in the year in which they are realised. A transaction i1s realised at the moment
of delivery. Losses are taken in the year in which they are realised or determinable.

(y) Determination of fair value:

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability
in an orderly transaction between marketr participants at the measurement dave. Market
price 15 used to deternune fair value where an active market exists as it 15 the best
evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continned)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

3. i cont’

The Company leases various motor vehicles under non-cancellable finance lease agreements
(note 10). The lease tenms are four vears. At vear end. the net book value of motor vehicles
acquired under finance leases was $6.735,311 (2016: S$10.408,657).

4. Long-term receivables

These represent loans granted to employees for the purpose of purchasing motor vehicles. The
loans are repayable by monthly installments over a period of five vears. These loans carry an
inferest rate of 8.95%, The cwrrent portion of these loans, due within twelve months from the
year-end amounting to $228.,060 (2016: $1.573.611) is included in other receivables (note 6).

5. Invemtories

2017 2016
5 5
Merchandise/equipment 69,645,369 80,609,940
Work-in-progress 7.859.718 74.895.956
Service supplies/parts 103,004,914 TE200.410
Goods in transit 43635708 66,465,987
224,165,709  300,172.293
Provision for obsolescence ( 15,779.737) ( 19.869.872)

".l;lg igﬁ E".“.r ?E[! i;l‘.r !"_r!

The cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales during the vear was $573.263.229 (2016:
$408.206,712).

6. Trade and other receivables

2017 2016
] 5
Trade 522.896.488  346.287.700
Allowance for doubtful debrs (_20.447.912) ( 32.453.138)
502,448,576 313.834.562
Other receivables® 24,662 964 40,013,153
Prepayvmenis 9219532 2,808,570

536,331,072 356,656,285

¥ Included in other receivables is $16,053.772 (2016: $15,929,759) held by a financial
instimtion and hypothecated to support performance guarantees issued by the instintion on
behalf of the Company.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Eor the vear ended October 31, 2017

6. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

2017 2016
Gross Impairment Gross Imypairment
3 3 i s
0-30 days 111,842,908 - 131,118,347 -
31-60 days 04,791,561 - 63,579,055 -
61=150 days 128.737.645 - 53,016,700 -
More than 180 days 187,524,284 20,447,912 98,573,598 32,453,138
522 806 455 0447912 346,287,700 32453 138
Movement in allowance for doubrful debts on trade receivables
2017 2016
5 5
Balance at beginning of year 32453138 25,457,111
Amount (released)/charged. net (10,938.210) 6,996,027
Amount written off (_1.067.016) -
Balance at end of vear 20,447,912 32,453,138

During the vear. impairment losses reversed and credited to the profit and loss amounted to
$10.938.210. In the prior year, impainuent losses net aggregating $6.996,027 were recognised
in profit or loss. Trade receivables written off amounted 1o $1.064,891 (2016: $2.879,252).

Cash and bank deposits
Cash and bank deposits include:

Cash on hand and in bank
Short-term deposits denonunated i Jamaican dollars
Short-term deposits denominated in foreign currencies

00.926.139
2.954.180

97,814,774
191,695,143

42.724.845
2.848.644
112.301.065

157.874.554

Imterest rates on the J$ deposits range from 0% - 5% (2016: 0% - 5%) and USS deposits from 0%
- 1.22% (2016: 0% - 1.22%). Interest on Sterling deposit is 0.12% (2016: 0.12%).
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the vear ended October 31, 2017

8. Share capital

L)
=
-]
L)
o
—
k=3

Anthorised in shares:

200,000,000 (2016: 200,000.000) Ordinary units of no par value
350,000,000 (2016: 350,000,000) Fixed and vanable rate
cumulative redeemable preference shares

Stated capirtal:
Issued and fully paid as stock vumits:

129.032.258 (2016: 129.032.258) ordinary umts of no par value 138.773.634 138.773.634
Less: Share issue costs (__9,583.877) (__9.583.877)

129,189,757 129,189,757

148.037.000 (2016: 148.037.000) Fixed and variable rate
cumulative redeemable preference shares 148.037.000  148.037.000

277,226,757 277,226,757

Less: Redeemable preference shares reclassified as
liability (see note 9) (148.037.000) (148.037.000)

129189757 129,189 757
On November 27, 2015, a resolunon was passed at an Ammual General Meetng whereby the
shareholders declared that each of the authorised and i1ssued ordinary stocks of CAC 2000
Limited be sub-divided into 20 ordinary stocks (20:1). The stock split preceded the new i1ssue
on December 23, 2015 of 29,032,258 stocks at a total value of $138,273.634. The Company
was listed on the Jamaica Junior Stock Exchange on Janmary 7. 2016 through an Initial Public
Offering.

9, Loans and borrowings

2017 2016
Y s
Bank loans
Motor velucle loans (a) 5.863.204 7.614.525
Bridging loan (b) 100,000,000 -
Redeemable preference shares (¢) 148,037,000 -
253.900.204 T.614.525
Less: Cwrent Portion (249,887,100} (__1.734.271)
Long-term Portion 4.013.104 5.880.254
Redeemable preference shares (¢) - 148.037.000

4013104 15391725

(a) The loans represent amounts borrowed by the Company to facilitate the purchase of motor
vehicles for employees. The loans are secured by charges over the motor vehicles
purchased and comprehensive insurance endorsed in favour of the bank on the motor
vehicles,

The loans are repayable m monthly mnstallments. Interest rates on the loans are fixed at
8.95% (2016: 8.95%) p.a.
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

MNotes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

. Loans and borrowings (cout"d)

(b} This represents an unsecured bridging loan from VM Wealth Management Limited. The
loan attracts imterest at a rate of 6.75% p.a. The loan is repavable by January 2018,

{¢) Redeemable preference shares:

2017 2016
$ §
Proceeds from issue of redeemable preference shares 148,037,000 148,037,000

350,000,000 fixed and variable rate redeemable preference shares were anthorised with an
1ssue price of $1 per share. Of this 148.037.000 (2016: 148.037.000) 1ssued shares are
fully paid. Redeemable preference shares do not cany the nght 1o vote or rank equally
with other shares with regard to the Company’s residual assets. except that holders of
redeemable preference shares participate only to the extent of the face value of the shares.

The redeemable preference shares are mandatorily redeemable at par on May 31, 2018 and
the Company is obliged to pay holders of redeemable preference shares dividends of 10
percent per anmun for the first vear and thereafler a vanable rate of 2.5 percent pomnt
above the weighted average vield rate applicable to the six month Jamaica Treasury Bill
Tender (WATBY). held immediately prior to the commencement of each quarterly interest
period until matraty. Dividend 15 paid quanterly.

10. Obligations under finance lease

The Company entered into finance lease agreements for the purchase of motor vehicles.
Obligations under these agreements are as follows:

2017 2016
£ L

In the vear ended October 31.

2016 - 1. 466,440
2017 553972 3755618
2018 3.323.830 3323830
2019 3.323.830 1323810
2020 553,972 553972
Total Minimum lease payments 7.755.604 12,423,690
Less: Future mterest payiments 1.020.293 2015033
Net obligations under finance leases 6.735.311 10,408,657
Less : Cumrent portion 2.658.668 31.673.346

4,076,643 6735311

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in
the event of default (note 3).
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11.

13.

Balances and transactions with related parties

The following balances were due to/from related parties at the end of the reporting year:

2017
5 5

L
=
h

(a) Due from related parties:
Shareholders” and directors” receivable - 1,664 849

—_— Lo6d4340

(b} Dme to related parties:

Cool Airco Limited 5,422,439 34325068
Due to shareholders - 87816
5422 439 35200384

(c) During the period. the Company had the following significant transactions with related
parties in the normal course of business.

2017 2016
s S
Purchases - Cool Awrco Linuted 38.284.975 21.924.014
Consultancy fees paid - Cool Airco Limited 15.460.854 8.937.922
53,745,820 30,861,936
(d) Key management persommel compensation is as follows:
2017 2016
5 5
Short-term employee benefits 41,224,720 25 7
Trade and other pavables
2017 2016
5 5
Trade payable 08281971 81,252 819
Customer deposits 54,454,650 112,058,682
Other payables and accruals 143.166.797  166.461.076
295903418 359772517

Included in other pavables and accruals 1s $68.222.121 (2016: 124.181.618) representing court
awarded damages and other related costs. (See note 20).

Gross operaling revenue

Gross operating revenue includes the mwvoiced value of goods, installation and service and
amounts recognised under constiction contracts,
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14.  Total distribution and administrative expenses

Diirectors fees

Directors remuneration

Staff costs

Audar fees

Bad debt (recovered)/expenses
Depreciation

Legal and professional fees

Promotion. advertising and entertainment
Bepairs and maintenance of property. plant and equipment
Insurance

Orccupancy, utilities and communication
Local and foreign travel

Office supplies and computer

Security service

Warranty and guarantee

Donations

Other

15, Personnel expenses
Included in:

Administrative expenses:
Salaries and other employee benefits
Statutory contributions

Selling and distribution:
Salaries and wages
Stamitory contributions
Comnussion

Directors remuneration
Staff costs
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2017 2016

b3 3
3.541.667 4.450.000
41.224.720 32.544.967
116,254,672 110,736,313
2.882.765 2,400,000
9.873,320) 9.875.279
20,505,700 14.915.160
33,118,809 22.600.487
9.059.690 9.511.296
10,509,791 15,606,990
18,521,261 12,418,730
19,107,588 17.626.214
5.134.154 4,946,498
14,670,594 15,102,495
6,158,195 4,255,369
5,358,293 2.777.185
4.139.662 952,800
8.585.160 6.635.047

208899496 28735

2017 2016

5 5
124,846,990  114.808.020
12.280.531 10.684.576

137,127,521

125,492,596

11,117,127 10,700,018
1,736,730 1.576.564
T.498.014 5,512,102
20.351.871  _17.788.684
57,479,302 32812
41.224.720 32.544.967

116,254,672  110.736.313
57,479,392 143,281,280
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CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
For the vear ended October 31. 2017

16.  Finance costs

2017 2016
5 3

Foreign exchange (losses)/zains, net ( 2.277.2318) 6.926.000
Interest income - Third party 1,090,000 1. 406,350
Interest expense - Bank loans ( 1.700620) ( 1.206.548)
- Dividend on preference share (12,610,071} (12.473.113)

- Finance lease ([ 994,739} ( 349.388)

- Other (_644.169) (_L.704.019)

(15.949.599) (15.733.068)

7.136,747 7.400.7

17.  Taxation

(a) Taxation is based on net profir for the year adjusted for taxation purposes and represents
income tax charged ar 25%.

2017 2016
5 5
The total charge for the year comprises:
Current tax (credit)/expense:
Prior year overaccrual (  221.812) -
Income tax - 601.212
(  221.812) 691.212
Deferred taxation:
Originating and reversal of other
timing differences. net - 154.534
(__221.812) __845.746
Profit before taxation 100,514,351 11315725
Computed “expected” tax expense at rate of 25% 25,128,588  2,823931

Tax effect of mcome and capital adjustments and expenses
that are not deductible in detenmining taxable

profits - (  103.929)
Tax overaccrual ( 221.812) -
Irrecoverable contractors levy paid - ( 494.137)
24,906,776 2,230,865
Adjustment for the effect of tax remission (note b) (_25,128 588) (_1.385.119)
(221812 __§45.746
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17.  Taxation (cont’d)
(b}  Remission of income tax:

The Company’s shares were listed on the Junior Market of the Jamaica Stock exchange,
effective January 7. 2016. Consequently. the Company is entitled to a remission of taxes
for ten (107 vears in the proportions set out below, provided the shares remain listed for at
least fifteen (15) years:

Years 1 to 5 1002
Years Sto 10 5004

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will have the
full benefit of the tax remissions.

18, Dividends and distributions

Dividends and distributions paid. gross, are as follows:

2017 2016
Ordinary stock units (@ $Nil (2016: $0.17)
per stock unit 5 - 21935484
There were no dividends declared during the vear. On June 13. 2016, the directors declared

dividends of $0.17.

19.  Eamings per stock unit

Earnings per ordinary stock unit. is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders
by the weighted average number of stock units in issue during the year.

2017 2016
3 3
Profit artributable to shareholders 100,736,163 10,469,979
Weighted average number ordinary stock units in issue 3 L 124,828 133
Basic and diluted earnings per stock uit 078 008
20, Contingencies and conmitments
(1) Court awarded damages, net:
2017 2016
8 S
Court awarded damages for the replacement of
equipment and loss of earnings - 55.959.525
Interest charges on cowrt awarded damages - 61.222.093
Provision for legal costs meurred by claimant - 7.000.000
Related insurance proceeds receivable - {20000, 0007

— AOLIELOLE
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(1) Court awarded damages, net (comt'd):

Damages were assessed in favour of a claimant who brought a claim against the Company
whereby the claimant was seeking to recover USS586,165 and J$1.015171 for
replacement of equipment and J$7,077,847 for loss of profit. This was appealed by the
Company and the judgment delivered by the Court allowed the Company’s appeal and
remitted the matter to the Supreme Court for a retrial. The case was heard at a trial held
December 7, 2015. On October 21, 2016, judgment was handed down in favour of the
claimant. The court awarded damages of US$372,100 and J$568.186.64 plus loss of
profits of $7,077,874. Interest at commercial rates and legal fees were also awarded.

Included in other payables and accruals is an accrual of $68,222,093 covering the related
interest on charges for the court awarded damages and estimated legal costs payable to the
claimant’s lawyers.

On December 2, 2016, the Company’s lawyers filed a Notice of Appeal The appeal
relates to the basis used by the tnal Judge to deternune the inferest component of the
award for the period June 2009 to 2016.

() Lease commitments
At October 31, 2017, there were mmexpired operating lease commitments in respect of

office buildings terminating November 1, 2020 aggregating J$11,878992 (2016
J514,088,696) of which J$3,959,664 (2016: J$3 959 664) 15 payable within one year.

21.  Jomt operation
During 2015, the Company entered into a Joint arrangement with an independent third party,
Inica Ingenieria de Instalaciomes S AL (INICA)., a company registered in the Dominican
Republic with registered office at the INICA Business Building, Santo Domingo, to carry out
mfrastructare improvements and renovations of The Braco Hotel in Jamaica; and to share the
profits 50:30. A separate company was not formed as a vehicle to camry out this project.
Consequently, the Company has accounted for its interest in the joint arrangement as a joint
operation.
The general pnnciples of the agreement includes:
All assets would be jointly held and disposed at the end of the project. The Company
would have the first option to buy INICAs share of each asset (subject to fair valuation by
an independent entity):
A project team would be setup with jointly agreed signing authonties and controls for
cheque signing, purchases, petty cash etc. This project team would also be charged to the
project (including INICA personnel and travel costs)
There would be an advisory board for the project compnsing of two semior managers each
from INICA and the Company.
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21, Jount operation (cont'd)

Revenue from the joint operation includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any
variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that
they will result in revenue and can be measured reliably. As soon as the outcome of a
construction conlract ¢an be estimated reliably. contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss
in proportion 10 the stage of completion of the contract. Contract expenses are recogmised as
incurred unless they create an asset related to future contract activity. The stage of completion
is assessed by reference to the percentage of the contract costs incwrred in relation to the total
estimated contract costs.

The following table summanses the financial information of the jomnt arangement as mcladed
in these financial statements on a line by line basis:

2017 2016
5 -1
Revenue 20,283,845  130,575.090
Cost of sales (11,786,949) ( 83,359,532)
Gross profit B 496896 _47.215.558
Trade receivable 32514894 _39.272.124
Wioak 1 progress - 10 106,655

22, Segment financial information

Informanon regarding the results of each reportable segment 15 ncluded below. Performance 15
measured based on segment profit before taxation. as mcluded in the mtemal management
reports that are reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker. Segment gross profit is used
to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in
evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within the related
industries,

2017
Residential
Light and
Engineering Commercial Senvice Tatal

Extemal segment revenues 762,004,975 284.253,530 164676967 1210935472
Segment gross profit 249207206 106,470,036 I58185 424435427
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22, Segment financial information (cont"d)

2016
Residential
Light and
Engineering Commercial Service Total

Extemal segment revenmes 609 506,680 2695 i J38 550421 1017610973
Segment gross profit 247480454 28835603 ~S3J0L40 410083480

23,  Retirement scheme

The Company participates in a comtributory retirement scheme for emplovees who have
satisfied certain nunimnm requirements. The scheme 15 accounted for as a defined contribution
plan in the financial statements, i.e. pension contributions are expensed as and when they fall
due. The scheme, 15 adounistered by The Scotia Jamaica Life Insurance Company Limited. a
company domiciled in Jamaica,

The Company’s contributions to the scheme for the vear aggregated to $2.856.902 (2016:
£3.011.535).

24. Financial nisk management

The Company’s financial risk management policies are directed by the Board of Directors.
assisted by the management. The Company’s activifies expose it to credit related risks. liquidity
risks and market risks that include foreign currency risks and interest rate risks.

The risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company. to sel appropriate nsk limits and comtrols. and to momitor risks and adherence 1o
limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’s acniviies. The board of directors has monitoring
oversight of the risk management policies.

Derivative financial imstruments are not presently used to reduce exposure to fluctuation in
inferest and foreign exchange rates.

Annual budgeting and the continuing monitoring of the operations of the Company against
the budgers allow the Board and the management to aclneve s olyecnves and ro manage
relevant financial risks that could be faced by the Company.

(a) Market nisk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial mstrament will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific 1o the
mdividual security or its 1ssuer or factors affecting all secunties traded in the market.
Market risks mainly arise from changes in foreign cnrrencies and interest rates. Market
risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis.
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24. Financial risk management (cont’d)
(a) Market nsk (contd)
(1) Foreign currency risk management

Currency nisk is the nsk that the farr value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company mcwrs foreign currency risk primarily on purchases, related parties
transaction. and investments that are denominated in a currency other than the
Jamaica dollar. The main foreign currency risks of the Company are denominated
in United States dollars (USS), which is the principal intervening cwrrency for the
Company: however, there are other transactions denomunated in Great Britain
Pound (GBP).

The Company's exposure o foreign currency was as follows:

2017 2016
Uss GBP US% GBP
Cash and bank deposits 1,089,069 5.305 970,708  5.301
Trade and other receivables 265,086 - 305,000 -
Due to related parties [ 42.493) - ( 27.126) -
Trade payables (__604.264) - (560.714) -
Net exposure _J07.39§ 4305  G8LE6S 5301

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:

Average exchange rates for the US dollar. in terms of Jamaica dollars, were as

follows:

Uss GBP
At October 31, 2017: 126.64 165.58
At October 31, 2016: 12830 154.20

Sensitivity analysis:

A 6% (2016: 6%) strengthenming of the United States dollar (the Company's
principal foreign cwrrency) and the Great Britain Pound (GBP) against the Jamaica
dollar would have decreased equity or decreased profit by $5.427.797 (2016:
£5.344.250). This analysis asswmes that all other varnables, in particular interest
rates. remain constant,
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Motes to the Financial Statements { Continued)
For the vear ended October 31. 2017

24.  Financial risk management (cont"d)

(a)  Market risk (eont’d)
(1)  Foreign currency risk management (cont"d)

A 2% (2016: 1%) weakemng of the Umited States dollar and the Great Bntamn
Pound against the Jamaica dollar at vear end would have mcreased profit or
mereased equity by 51,809,266 (2016 $890,708),

The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2016,

The foreign currency sensitivities have vared due to the relative changes in the
level of trade pavables and related party balances held in foreign currency
compared to that held for cash and bank deposits.

(i) Interest rate risk management

Interest rate msk 1z the potential that the value of a financial mstrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market imterest rates. Financial mstnunents sulyject to
fixed interest rates are exposed to fair value interest rate risk while those subject to
floating interest rates are exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by matching. where possible, the
duration and profile of assets and liabilities to minimise the impact of mismatches
berween the value of assets and halalines from inferest rate movements.

Interests bearing financial assets are pnmarily represented by mvestments, which
have been contracted at fixed and floating interest rates for the duration of the temn.

Financial habilines subject to mterest mclude primarily third party and related
party loans which are contracted at fixed rates of interest,

The nature of the Company’s exposures to interest rate risk and 15 objectives,
policies and processes for managmg mterest rate nsk have not changed
significantly from the prior period.

PROSPECTUS | Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 83



39

CAC 2000 LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contmued)
For the vear ended October 31, 2017

24.  Fmancial risk management (cont"d)
{a) Market risk (comt™d)
(il) Interest rate risk management (cont’d)

At the reporting date, the interest profile of the Company’s interest-bearing
financial instrmments was:

Canving amoimt
2017 2016
5 5
Fixed rate instruments:
Financial assets 101,366,661 115.149.708
Financial liabilities (112598 515) (_18.023.181)
(_11231.854) _97.126.527
Variable rate instrument:
Financial liability (148,037.000) (148.037,000)

(159.268.854) (_50.910473)

Sensirivity emalyvsis for fived rate instriments

The Company’s fixed rate financial mstruments are not camed at fair value.
Therefore a change in interest rate would not affect the profit for the vear.

Cash_flow sensitivity analvsis for variable rate instrumeits:

Interest rate sensitivity has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates

for the Company’s short-term deposits, party loans at the end of reporting period as
these are substantially the interest sensitive instruments impacting financial results.

A change of 100 (2016: 250) basis points in interest rares at the reporting date
would have increased/{decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates,
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016,

X017 2016
t 5 ect t or loss
100bp 100bp 250bp 250bp
Increase decrease InCrease decrease

Cash flow sensitivity  $1,480,370 1480370 3,700,925 3,700,925
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24. Financial risk management (cont"d)
(b) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the nsk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk exposure arises principally from
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and long-term receivables.

In relation to bank accounts and short-tenn deposits, the Company has a policy to deal
with credit worthy counterparty to mininuze credit risk exposures, The credit risk on
cash and cash equivalents 1s hnuted as the Company minimises this risk by seeking
to limit its obligations to substantial recognised financial institutions. In respect
of trade receivables, the risk is minimised by discontinning the services and also by
making adequate provisions for uncollectible ameonnts.

The Company establishes an allowance for impainnent that represents its estimate of
imcwred losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The Company addresses
impairment assessment in two areas: individually assessed allowances and collectively
assessed allowances. The average credit period extended by the Company is 30 days. No
mterest is charged on trade and other receivables. The Company has provided for
receivables over 180 days after due assessment and as considered necessary. becanse
lustorical experience is such that recervables that are past due beyond this penod are
generally not recoverable,

Credit risks on long-term receivables are mitigated by providing financing only to
contracted emplovees with long standing relationship with the Company who are
creditworthy.

The maximum credit exposure is represented by the carrying amount of the financial
assets on the statement of financial position.
(c) Liguuidity risk management

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its payvment obligations
associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk
management implies maintaining sufficient cash and other liquid assets, and
maintaining the availability of funding through an adequate amount of commnutted
credit facilities,

Management of liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors
and management. The Company manages liquidity nsk by mamtaining adequate
reserves, banking facilines. continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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L]

24. Financial nsk mana t (cont
(c)  Ligquidity risk management (cont'd)
Liquidity and interest rate tables

The following table details the Company’s contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of off-

setting agreements.
2017
Carymg Coatzachual 0-12 1-1 1-5
Azemt manthy A eany
Trade and other
pavables 795903 418 205003418 295903 418 . -
Due to related
parties 5422430 5412439 5422450 - -
Loans and bormowings 253 900,204 269348243 264,791,885 1817043 2739515
Finance leases £735311 1.755.604 1323830 213713830 2 Ll07e43
SL281L220 AlB420204  SSRadlsll  LM40813  AR47428
2016
Camyag Costachal 0-12 1-3 -3
amget £ash flosn macths A =
Trade and other
pavables 358,772,570 ISTIZS  ISHTILSTO - -
Due o related
pames 3,520,384 3510384 3,520,384 - -
Loans and bamowings 155,651,525 231,919,710 17,367,775 17540468 196602467
Finance beases 10, 857 11910381 3323 830 3313830 5. 262731

S18333.045 ST1306  JEISR4 568 21273208 201865708
(d) Capital nsk management

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity atmributable to the equity holders
comprising issued capital and retained eamings.

The Company's objectives when managing its capital structure, which is a broader
concept than the equity on the face of the statement of financial position are:

1) To safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide retums for stakeholders; and

i) Maintain a strong capital base to support the business development.

The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2016.
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(e)  Fair value of financial mstruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged. or a liability settled
between knowledgeable, willing parties m an arm’s length transaction. A market pnce,
where an active market (such as a recognised stock exchange) exists, is the best evidence
of the fair value of a financial instrument. Where market prices are not available for
some of the financial assets and labilities of the Company, the fair values in the
financial statements have been presented using various estimation techniques
based on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting penod. Generally,
judgment is necessanly required in interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair
value. Accordingly, the estimates presented in these financial statements are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company would realise in a current
market exchange.

The following method and assumption have been used in determining the fair values of
financial assets and financial Liabilities:

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables, amounts due from related parties and other assets and Liabilihes maturing
within one year (including the short-term elements of non-current mmstruments) is
assumed to approximate their fair value because of the short-term matunity of these
mstruments.

(1)  The fur value of bank loans 15 assumed to approximate their carrymg amounts as
interest rates are contractually adjusted by issuer with movement in underlying
bank base rates.

(1) The fair value of long-term receivables which is due from the Company's
contract staff is considered to be the amount receivable (the carrying value) given
the special nature of the arrangement.

There are no financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at
fair value in these financial statements.
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Appendix 2

Terms of Issue of Fixed & Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares

CAC 2000 Lid

(the “Company™)

“Terms of Issue — Fixed & Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares”

In these Terms of Issue:

‘Agreed Rate” means 9.50% per annum for the first four vears and thereafter a variable rate of 3.0
percentage points above the weighted average vield rate applicable to the six-month Jamaica
Treasury Bill tender (WATBY ), held immediately prior to the commencement of each quarterly
mnterest period, until matunty on 2022,

“Business Dav™ means a date. not being a Saturday. Sunday or public holiday when banks arc open
for business in Jamaica;

“lssuc Date™ means the date of issuc of the Preference Shares pursuant to the Offer;

“Offer” means the ofter with respect to the Preference Shares made pursuant to that certain
Prospectus 1ssued by the Company;

“Preference Stock Units™ means the preference stock units ereated on conversion of the Preference
Shares, on issuc.

The Preference Shares in the capital of the Company, with no par value, and subject as
hereinafter provided, a tenor of 60 months, the same to he issued at a price of J51.00 shall
be denominated Fixed & Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares” (herein
in these Terms, the “Preference Shares™) conferring upon the registered holders thereof the
following rights and shall be subject to the following restrictions, namely:

(a) the nght to a cumulative preferential dividend at the Agreed Rate per annum on the capital
for the time being paid up or credited as paid up on the Preference Stock Units, in Jamaican
Dollars, commencing on the expiration of minety {(%1}) days after the Closing Date with
respect to the Offer, thereafter quarterly, in each case on the earliest possible date following
declaration bv the Board of Directors of the Company and processing by the Registrar and
Transfer Agent engaged by the Company to attend to, inter alia, payments to registered
holders;

(b) the night on a winding up of the Company or other return of capital to repavment in
Jamaican Dollars in prionity to any payment to the holders of anv other shares or stock
units in the capital of the Company of’
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(1) the amounts paid up on the Preference Stock Units: and

(11} any arrears or accruals of the cumulative preferential dividend on the
Preference Stock Units, whether declared or camed. or not. calculated down
to the date of such repavment but to no further or other right to share in the
surplus asscts of the Company on a winding up.

(c) the Preference Stock Units shall NOT carry the right to vote at any general meeting of the
Company EXCEPT in circumstances where the cumulative dividend on the Preference
Stock Units remains unpaid for a period greater than 12 months and/or a resolution to wind
up the Company has been passed AND in either such event, every holder of Preference
Stock Units present in person or by proxy shall have one vote, and on a poll every holder
of Preference Stock Units, present in person or by proxy, shall have one vote for each
Preference Stock Unit of which he is the holder,

(d) The Company may, without any consent or sanction of the holders of Preference Stock
Units create and issue further preference shares, the same to be converted into preference
stock units either ranking pari passu and identically in all respects and so as to form one
class with the existing Preference Stock Units or ranking pani passu therewith as regards
priority in respect of income and/or capital but carrving a different rate of dividend or
otherwise differing from the Preference Stock Units.

{c) The Prefercnee Shares shall be issued as Fixed & Vanable Rate Cumulative Redeemable
preference shares, converted on issue to Preference Stock Units and subject to the
provisions contained in Section 56 of the Companies Act of Jamaica (the “Act™) (as the
same mayv be amended from time to time) redemption of such Preference Stock Units shall
be effected in the manner and on the terms following:

(1) For greater certainty in these Terms, it i1s hereby confirmed that redemption of
the Preference Stock Units by the Company may be effected pursvant to a
notice issued by the Company in accordance with these Terms PROVIDED
THAT and notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained herein, the
Company reserves the right to redeem the Preference Stock Units at anyv time
after the expiration of two (2) vears from the Closing Date of the Offer. on a
date fixed for the pavment of any dividend. providing the registered holder
with minety (90) days™ notice of its intention to so redeem.

(11) At the time and place fixed for redemption of Preference Stock Units:

a. the registered holder, if such registered holder i1s the holder of
Preference Stock Units by virtue of an allotment by the Company (the
“original holder™) or a transferce from the onginal holder effected
OTHER than by the facilitics of the Jamaica Stock Exchange. shall be
bound to deliver up to the Company the relative share/stock
certificate(s) with respect to the said Preference Stock Units for
cancellation following redemption; and/or

b. the Company shall be bound to redeem the said Preference Stock
Units and shall pay the registered holder, the redemption money in
respect of such Preference Stock Units together with any arrcars or
accruals of the cumulative preferential dividend (whether camed or
declared or not) caleulated down to the date fixed for pavment.
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(F) If the fixed cumulative dividend on the Preference Stock Units shall have been paid up in
full up to and including the last vearly date fixed for payvment, the Company may (subject
to the provisions of the Companies Act) redeem all or any of the Preference Stock Units
on the date coinciding with the last Business Day of the sixticth month following the date
of 1ssuc. by the purchase of such Preference Stock Units on the Jamaica Stock Exchange
(bv wav of an unintcrruptible put through) or by private treaty at a price of $1.00 per
Preference Stock Unit (exclusive of stamp dutv, commission and other cxpenscs of
purchase and anv accrued dividend thercon),

(z) As from the time fixed for redemption of anv of the Prefercnce Stock Units under any
notice given by the Company pursuant to paragraph (¢) of these Terms, dividends shall
cease to accrue on such Preference Stock Umits except in respect of anv Preference Stock
Unit in respeet of which pavment due on such redemption was refused.

(h) Ifany holder of Preference Stock Units shall fail or refuse to surrender the certificate(s) for
such Preference Stock Units (where such surrender is required) or shall fail or refuse to
accept the redemption monev payvable in respect of such Preference Stock Units, at the time
fixed for redemption of anv of the Preference Stock Units under any notice given by the
Company pursuant to paragraph (e) of these Terms, such money shall be retained and held
by the Company in trust for such registered holder but without interest or further obligation
whatever.

(i) Mo Preference Stock Units shall be redeemed otherwise than out of distributable profits or
the proceeds of a fresh 1ssue of preference shares made for the purposes of the redemption
as permitted by the Act.

(j) No Preference Stock Units redeemed by the Company shall be capable of re-issue and on
redemption of any Preference Stock Units, the Directors may convert the authonised share
capital created as a consequence of such redemption into shares and/or stock units of any
other class of share capital into which the authorised share capital of the Company is or
mayv at that time be divided of a like nominal amount (as nearly as may be) as the shares
and/or stock units of such class then in issue or into unclassified shares and/or stock units
of the same nominal amount as the Preference Stock Units.

(k) The rights attaching to the Preference Stock Units may not be varied either while the
Company is a going concem or during or in contemplation of a winding up of the Company
without the consent in writing of the holders of three-fourths of the 1ssued Preference Stock
Units or without the sanction of an Extraordinary Resolution passed at a separate meeting
of that class, but not otherwise. To every such separate meeting all of the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company relating to general meetings of the Company or to
proceedings thereat shall, mudaris mutandis apply, except that the necessary quorum shall
be two persons at least holding or representing by proxy one-third in nominal amount of
the issued Preference Stock Units (but so that if’ at any adjoumed meeting of such holders
aquorum as above defined is not present those members who are present shall be a quorum)
and that the holders of Preference Stock Units shall. on a poll, have one vote in respect of
cach Preference Stock Units held by them respectively.

These Terms of Issue were approved by the directors of the Company pursuant to a resolution of the directors of the
Company passcd as at October 24, 2017,
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APPENDIX 3
CAC 2000 LIMITED
APPLICATION FORM

CAC 2000 Limited. Offer for Sale of 9.5% Vanable Rate Cumulative

Redesmable Preference Shares in CAC 2000 Limited
APPLICATION FORM
PLEASE READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE SIDE BEFORE COMPLETING THIS FORM

To: CAC 2000 Limited

Re: invitation for Sale and Subscription in respect of up to Two Hundred Million Dollars JS$200,000,000.00 9.5% Varahle Rate Cumulative Redeemabls
Preference Shares in CAC 2000 Limited made pursuant to the Prospectus dated March 07, 2018, |"We confirm that bwe have read and understood and
heraby agree lo be bound by the lerms and condilions conlamed in the Prospeclus, all of which are incorporated in this Application Form by reference.

I"We hereby apply for £.5% Variable Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares in CAC 2000 Limited on and subject lo
the: terms and conditions of the Prospectus at the price of $1.00 each and I/We attach myfour cheque inglusive of 816310 proceszing fee QR 1AW have
requested mylour broker to make payment on myfour behalfl from cleared funds held by them in mylour name in account numbered

with them OR 1'We hereby insfruct myfour broker to debit myfour account with the sum of J§ for the purposes of myfour subscription
of shares and processing fee as indicated above QR |We have senl payment via RTGS to Victoria Mutual Wealth Management Limited as per RTGS
details on the back of this form on {inser date sent).

I'WVe agree o accept the same or any smaller number of shares in respect of which this applicaion may be accepted, subject to the terms and conditions in
the Prospectus and the conslitutive documents of CAC 2000 Lid, by which 'We agree to be bound. 'We request you to sell and issue to mefus the number
of shares which may be allocated lo mafus al the close of the said Ofer upon the lerms and condilions governing applications, as sel forth in the Prospeclus.
Iie hereby agree to accept the shares that may be allocated to mefus to pursuant to the Offer.

INSTRUCTIONS TO COMPLETE APPLICATION FORM: All fields are relevant and must be completed. A JCSD Account Number must be provided in order
for the application to be processed. Please note that the names indicated below must be reflected on the account at the JCSD based on the account number
provided.

PRIMARY HOLDER DETAILS (EITHER COMPANY OR INDIVIDUAL

ENENEENSEEENNEEEEEEENNEEEEEENNNEEEEEREEE

TITLE TAXPAYER REGISTRATION # JCSD ACCOUNT NUMBER  BROKER & RESIDENCY  CITIZENSHIP NATIONALITY

HENEREEEEEEEEEREEEEEEEpEEEpEEEpEEEREEE

OCCUPATION

HIEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENEEEEEEEEEEED

MAILING ADDRESS LINE 1

HISEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEN

MAILING ADDRESS LINE 2

HNSEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENEEEEEEEEEEEEE

MAILING ADDRESS LINE 3

HNEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

MAILING ADDRESS LINE 4

HISEEEENEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENEEEEEEEEEEEEE

EMAIL ADDRESS

HEEEEEEEENEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE

TELEPHOME NUMEBER (MOBILE) TELEPHOME NUMBER (HOME) TELEPHONE NUMBER (WORK)

HNEEEEEEEE HNEEEEEEEE INEEEEEEEE

PLEASE CONTINUE ON REVERSE TO COMPLETE JOINT HOLDER INFORMATION
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SIGNATURES:

INDIVIDUAL:

DATE SIGMATURE AFFIXED:

COMPAMNIES (COMPANY SEAL OR STAMP REQUIRED):

DIRECTOR: DIRECTOR/SECRETARY:

DATE SIGNATURES AFFIXED:

USE BY REGISTRAR ONLY
Form 1D
ALL APPLICANTS MUST INDICATE THEIR TAXPAYER REGISTRATION
NUMBERS
ALL APPLICANTS ARE REQUIRED TO PAY J$163.10 PROCESSING FEE PER Baich #:
APPLICATION SUBMITTED
THIS OFFER 15 NOT MADE TO PERSONS RESIDENT OUTSIDE JAMAICA
JOINT HOLDER 1 INFORMATION (Either Company er Individual)
HEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
QCCUPATI TAXPAYER REGISTRATION NUMBER SIGNATURE
[I[[IIIIIIII]II]III' :
JOINT HOLDER 2 INFORMATION (Either Company or Individual)
HEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEENEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
OCCUPATION TAXPAYER REGISTRATION NUMBER SIGNATURE
HNEEERERRERERERREREEEEEEEER
JOINT HOLDER 3 INFORMATION (Either Company or Individual)
|||||||||||||||||||IIIIIIIIII|||||IIIIIII
OCCUPATION TAXPAYER REGISTRATION NUMBER SIGMNATURE

JEEEEEEEEEEEEEEpEEEGEENEEEE

TO BE COMPLETED WHERE REFUND OR DIVIDEND PAYMENT IS TO BE MADE BY RTGS FOR AMOUNTS EXCEEDING
J§1,000,000.00. PLEASE INSERT YOUR WIRE/IRTGS INFORMATION

NAME OF BANK:

BRANCH:

SWIFT/BIC

NAME(S) ON BANK ACCOUNT
ACCOUNT NUMEBER:
ACCOUNT TYPE:

FOR FURTHER CREDIT TO:
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NOTES ON HOW TO COMPLETE THE APPLICATION FORM

1. All completed applications must be delivered to the named Victoria Mutual Wealth Management
Limited locations as detailed in Section 18 of the Prospectus

2. Application must be for a minimum of 50,000 shares with increments in multiples of 10,000.

3. All applicants must attach their payment for the specified number of Shares they have applied for,
in the form of either:

a) A Manager's cheque made payable to Victoria Mutual Wealth Management Limited, or

b) Authorization Letter from the Applicant instructing Victoria Mutual Wealth Management
Limited. to make payment from cleared funds held in an investment account in the Applicant’s
Name, or

c) Transferin Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) system to VM Wealth Management Limited,
in the
case of payment of J$1,000,000 or more to Bank of Jamaica account # 1015;
BIC#INCBJMKX; Beneficiary: National Commercial bank, 1-7 Knutsford Boulevard; for
further credit to Victoria Mutual Wealth Management Limited A/C # 351171960.

d) If you are applying jointly with any other person you must complete the Joint Holder
Information and each joint holder must sign the Application Form at the place indicated.

4. If you are applying jointly with another person, you must complete the Joint Holder Information and
each joint holder must sign the Application Form in the place indicated.

5. All Applicants must be at least 18 years old and must attach a certified copy of their T.R.N. card or
Jamaican Driver’s Licence displaying the T.R.N.

6. Share Certificates will not be issued unless specifically requested through your broker. Instead, the
shares allotted to a successful applicant will be credited to his account at the Jamaica Central
Securities Depaository ("JCSD"). If the applicant does not have a JCSD account, one will be created
by your broker and the allotted shares deposited to that account.

7. All Applicants are deemed to have accepted the terms and conditions set out in the Prospectus and
the Articles of Incorporation of the Company generally.
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THIS SECTION FOR USE BY BROKER ONLY

DATE APPLICATION RECEIVED:

TIME RECEIVED:

PAYMENT METHOD: cVMWM A/C # —VMBS TRANSFER/DEPOSIT SLIP
TRTGSMWIRE nCHEQUE

PAYMENT VALUE: FAYMENT DATE:

VMWM ADVISOR:

BRANCH:

BROKER STAMP AND SIGNATURE
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